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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2023.

FY2023 presented a challenging operating environment, with the
retail market being severely impacted by the fifth wave of COVID-19
in early 2022. External factors affecting the international supply chain,
ongoing inflationary pressure, and the uncertainty in the global
economic environment further contributed to the uncertainty of the
future economy. Although the COVID-19 pandemic began to be
contained during the year and the government’s implementation of a
series of economic stimulus measures led to the gradual improvement
in market and consumer sentiment, the business environment
remained challenging.

In the difficult business environment of the past few years, we have
constantly reviewed our operation and made adjustments
accordingly. | am pleased to see that the Group’s business in Hong
Kong has maintained good momentum. In FY2023, the Group’s
revenue increased to a record high of HK$463.1 million. All treatment
centres and skincare retail stores saw significant growth in customer
numbers and revenue. The core brand CosMax+ continued to hold a
leading position in the high-end medical aesthetic industry. The
revenue and profit potential of the VITAE treatment centres has
gradually become apparent. The high-end skincare brand XOVE also
adjusted its sales network. It is hoped that the three brands will
continue to provide momentum for the Group in 2024, enabling the
Group’s business to capitalise on another wave of rapid growth as
the economy back to the right track.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

In addition to local business growth, the Group is actively equipping
itself and planning for the future. In FY2023, our high-end skincare
brand XOVE officially launched in the Mainland China stores of
Sephora, an internationally renowned beauty retail group and a brand
under the French LVMH group. It has more than 1,000 stores
worldwide, including over 360 stores in Mainland China, it offers a
outstanding platform for the Group and XOVE to increase brand
awareness. XOVE’s sales from Sephora for the first three months
were encouraging, and it ranked among the best-selling beauty
brands of Sephora in Mainland China, representing a significant step
forward for the development of the brand and the Group. The
Group’s entry into the Mainland China market during the year led to
an increase in marketing expenses and other expenses, and thus a
net loss of approximately HK$20.5 million (last year: net profit
approximately HK$25.4 million) was recorded. However, as the
business in Mainland China is in the seeding period, it is expected to
bring a positive contribution and effect to the Group’s revenue and
profit when economies of scale are gained in the future.

In FY2024, we will continue to invest in R&D and introduce new
projects to enhance and enrich the overall customer experience, in
addition to providing quality services and products based on
professionalism and safety. The Group will continue to explore
potential business opportunities while deeply cultivating the local
market in Hong Kong and actively developing the Mainland market in
order to accelerate the Group’s overall business development. In
terms of corporate governance, we will continue to optimise the
Group’s operations and management in order to maintain a
competitive advantage in the dynamic environment, increase the
Group’s revenue and profit, and create better value and return for
shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our shareholders,
business partners, suppliers and customers for their support. My
heartfelt appreciation also goes to our management and team for
their dedication and contributions over the past year.

Lai Ka Yee Gigi
Chairlady & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRD

Business Review

The business environment in Hong Kong remained difficult in the year
ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year Under Review”). The market was
dealt a significant blow by the fifth wave of COVID-19 in early 2022,
which severely impacted the retail market. This was further
compounded by external factors affecting the global supply chain,
rising inflationary pressures, and an unclear global economic
environment, all of which added to the uncertainty about the future
economy. Despite the introduction of a series of economic stimulus
measures by the government, which gradually improved market and
consumer sentiment following the containment of the COVID-19
pandemic during the Year Under Review, the operating environment
remained challenging.

Nevertheless, leveraging on our reputation and solid foundation
established over the years, the Group was able to maintain strong
growth momentum in its main business segments. It has been
preparing for society’s full return to normalcy while actively deploying
for its long-term business growth. In order to better meet future
development, the Group has given full play to its competitive
advantages, explored new business areas and expanded into new
markets, all of which have helped in maintaining its market leading
position.

During the Year Under Review, the Group’s revenue increased by
approximately HK$99.2 million, or 27.3%, to HK$463.1 million
compared with the year ended 31 March 2022 (the “Previous Year”).
The number of closure days that the Group’s medical aesthetic
centres also decreased significantly (Year Under Review: 20 days;
Previous Year: 84 days) as a result of the containment of the
pandemic and the government’s economic stimulus measures. The
treatment centres and skincare retail outlets recorded notable growth
in footfall and revenue, showing consumers’ recognition of the
Group’s brand and the quality of its services and products. This also
bodes well for another wave of rapid growth for the Group, supported
by strong market demand in the wake of the pandemic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Business Review (Continued)

During Year Under Review, the Group’s premium skincare brand
XOVE officially marched into Sephora, an internationally renowned
beauty products retail group, in Mainland China, which has provided
an excellent platform for the Group and XOVE to increase brand
awareness. Due to its entry into the Mainland China market, the
Group incurred higher marketing costs and other expenses and
resulted a net loss of approximately HK$20.5 million (Previous Year:
net profit of HK$25.4 million) during the year. The business in
Mainland China is currently in the seeding period and is expected to
reach harvesting period and achieve stronger economies of scale in
the future which is forecasted to positively contribute and impact the
Group’s revenue and profit.

The Group operates three CosMax+ medical aesthetic centres in
prime and strategic locations, enabling it to attract and build a diverse
customer base. All devices and treatments have been clinically
evaluated by doctors before adoption to ensure the provision of safe
and high-quality customised treatment services. In addition, drawing
on its solid foundation built over the years, CosMax+ has established
a leading position in the high-end medical aesthetics market.

The Group also operates three VITAE treatment centres in prime
locations. The brand emphasises the need to maintain an optimal
balance between beauty and health, so that customers have beauty
that emanates from within. By adhering to the above service
philosophy for a year, VITAE has already built a steadily expanding
customer base. After the COVID-19 pandemic was brought under
control, both footfall and revenue of the VITAE centres have increased
substantially. As public awareness of health and beauty increases,
the Group believes that “healthy beauty” will become a new trend in
the market and VITAE will further contribute to the Group’s overall
customer base, revenue and profitability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRD

Business Review (Continued)

XOVE is a premium skincare product brand developed by a team of
Swiss skincare experts. At the end of the Year Under Review, the
Group had 10 retail stores in first-tier shopping malls in Hong Kong
and promoted and sold its products online through various platforms
in Mainland China and Hong Kong. During Year Under Review, XOVE
officially landed Sephora, an internationally renowned beauty product
retail group, in Mainland China. With more than 360 stores across
Mainland China, Sephora has provided an excellent platform for the
Group and XOVE to raise brand awareness. The Group also plans to
launch new product lines during the year to further enlarge its market
share and attract more potential customers.

In order to enhance the image of the brands and secure new
customers, the Group launched a number of advertising and
promotional activities during the Year Under Review.

In April 2022, CosMax+ expanded its Central branch and relocated to
New World Tower. The new centre is more spacious and has a
stronger artistic atmosphere, creating a superior and more
comfortable treatment experience for customers. In the same vyear,
CosMax+ collaborated with international fashion magazine VOGUE to
interview socialites and entrepreneurs, who shared their insights on
beauty based on the theme “Authentic Beauty”. The campaign has
helped CosMax+ strengthen its “exquisite beauty” brand image
among consumers. The brand also introduced new medical aesthetic
equipment and products, including Sofwave™, to provide more
diversified treatment services.

Observing the growing market demand for facial contouring
treatments, medical aesthetic brand VITAE upgraded its “FaceGym™”
treatment in November 2022 and once again invited international
celebrity Fala Chen to take part in a series of promotional videos,
which received positive feedback from the market. Both CosMax+
and VITAE received the “Quality Service Recognition” from the Hong
Kong Retail Management Association (HKRMA) this year, recognising
the brands’ achievements in providing consumers with quality medical
aesthetic services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Business Review (Continued)

As for XOVE, the brand has increased the number of sales outlets to
ten. To complement the upgrade of the official website, XOVE has
optimised the interface and operation process to improve the user
experience and further deepen its omni-channel advantage.
Meanwhile, as a way to raise brand awareness and strengthen
relationships with customers, XOVE held a two-day “White Truffle Five
Senses Journey” event at Rosewood Hong Kong in November 2022.
The event garnered widespread attention, inviting more than 100
socialites, celebrities and loyal customers, and was widely covered by
the media. In addition, XOVE engaged celebrities and internet
celebrities, including Kary Ng, Cecilia Choi and Cecilia Yeung, to
promote the benefits of XOVE products and raise brand recognition.
The brand also participated in the “Pink Revolution” campaign
organised by the Cancer Fund for the second year in a row,
demonstrating its commitment to corporate social responsibility and
deepening its positive brand image.

In addition to capitalising on the rapid growth momentum of the
medical aesthetic industry in the past few years, the Group has also
actively made long-term deployments for its future business
development. Its entry into the Mainland China market during the
Year Under Review represented one of the major strategic milestones
for the Group, and the advertising and promotional activities have had
a positive impact on the Group’s sales. It is expected that the brands
will bring more financial and non-financial contributions to the Group,
especially when the Mainland business enters the harvest period and
gains economies of scale, thereby supporting the Group’s overall
performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review

Revenue

Our revenue is mainly derived from the provision of medical aesthetic
services, which include treatment services, prescription and
dispensing of medical products. In addition, we sell skincare products
to our clients.

Our Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$463.1 million
for the Year Under Review, representing an increase of approximately
HK$99.2 million or 27.3% as compared with HK$363.9 million for the
Previous Year. During the Year Under Review, our Group opened 1
new treatment centre and 6 retail stores for the sale of skincare
products. The effective implementation of our sales and marketing
activities increased the public awareness for our brands, revenue
from both treatment services and sale of skincare products increased
significantly as compared to Previous Year.
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For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIHLEE

2023 2022

HK$’000 % HK$'000 %

FET Baotk T Bok

Treatment services BZIRTS 333,213 72.0 289,096 79.4

Skincare products EEEMR 129,573 28.0 74,295 20.5

Medical consultation services B2 RS iR AR TS 9 0.0 15 0.0
Prescription and dispensing BEEmE T Mid %

of medical products 322 0.0 509 0.1

Total revenue Al e 463,117 100.0 363,915 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EBENWRDN

Financial Review (Continued)
Revenue (Continued)

@

(i)

(iii)

Revenue from treatment services

Revenue from treatment services amounted to approximately
HK$333.2 million for the Year Under Review and approximately
HK$289.1 million for the Previous Year, representing 72.0%
and 79.4% of our total revenue, respectively. The increase of
approximately HK$44.1 million or 15.3% was primarily due to (1)
introduction of new treatment services; (2) steady growth of
customer base of VITAE; (3) the implementation of effective
sales and marketing activities which increase the public
awareness of the brands and (4) decrease in number of closure
days of the Group’s medical aesthetic centres during the Year
Under Review (Year Under Review: 20 days; Previous Year: 84
days).

Revenue from sale of skincare products

Skincare products represents series of products include
cleanser, toner, serum, moisturiser, eye care products,
ultraviolet (UV) protection products and masks, etc., which
backed up by a team of Swiss skincare experts.

Revenue from sale of skincare products amounted to
approximately HK$129.6 million for the Year Under Review and
approximately HK$74.3 million for the Previous Year,
representing 28.0% and 20.5% of our total revenue,
respectively. The increase of approximately HK$55.3 million, or
74.4%, was primarily due to (1) well acceptance of our existing
& new products; (2) loyalty of customers built over the years;
and (3) increase in brand awareness and sales in Mainland
China.

Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical
products

Based on clients’ skin conditions, their specific needs and
requirements, our doctors may prescribe medication and/or
recommend certain skincare products which are dispensed at
our medical aesthetic centres.

Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical products
amounted to approximately HK$0.3 million for the Year Under
Review and approximately HK$0.5 million for the Previous Year,
representing 0.0% and 0.1% of our total revenue, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)

Other income and gain, net

Other income and gain, net amounted to approximately HK$9.4
million for the Year Under Review and HK$1.3 million for the Previous
Year. The increase of approximately HK$8.1 million or 623.1% was
primarily due to approximately HK$6.7 million government subsidies
received in relation to Employment Support Scheme and other
subsidy scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund during the Year Under
Review, whereas there was approximately HK$0.6 million government
subsidies received in Previous Year.

Cost of inventories and consumables

Cost of inventories and consumables amounted to approximately
HK$47.4 million for the Year Under Review and HK$29.0 million for
the Previous Year. The increase of approximately HK$18.4 million or
63.4% was primarily due to increase in revenue during the Year
Under Review.

Staff costs

Staff costs increased by approximately HK$52.2 million, or 41.7%,
from approximately HK$125.3 million for the Previous Year to
approximately HK$177.5 million for the Year Under Review. The
increase in staff costs during the Year Under Review was mainly
attributable to the increase in number of staff due to 6 retail stores for
the sale of skincare products opened during the Year Under Review
and commission paid to doctors and front-line staff whose incentive
scheme tied to various key performance indicators such as number
of treatment conducted and number of package sold.

Property rentals and related expenses

Property rentals and related expenses and depreciation of right-of-
use assets increased by approximately HK$21.4 million, or 44.0%,
from approximately HK$48.6 million for the Previous Year to HK$70.0
million for the Year Under Review. The increase was primarily due to
full year impact for the 2 new treatment centres opened in Previous
Year and 6 retail stores for the sale of skincare products opened
during the Year Under Review.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation in relation to property, plant and equipment increased
by approximately HK$19.6 million, or 79.0%, from approximately
HK$24.8 million for the Previous Year to approximately HK$44.4
million for the Year Under Review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)

Other expenses, net

Set forth below is a breakdown of our other expenses, net during the
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022:

B[Ol EE (@)

Hihp 58

HE2023F K 202243 A31 HIEFERMEAM
FSOFFRRMAES AT

2023 2022

HK$°000 HK$’000 % change

FET FHAT BOLLEH

Credit card commission ERRAE® 15,722 8,658 81.6
Advertising and promotion expenses = EE RHEERY 62,229 47,829 30.1
Repair and maintenance fees HERREE 4,740 3,939 20.3
Professional fees HEEF 7,947 4,494 76.8
Charitable donations REBRX 129 29 344.8
Consultancy fees ESE= 18,723 13,236 415

Loss on disposal of items of property, HEW - HERHBHEEH 2

plant and equipment, net Ei8F 5 - 3 (100.0)
Others Hith 43,981 24,996 76.0
153,471 103,184 48.7

Other expenses, net increased by approximately HK$50.3 million
from approximately HK$103.2 million for the Previous Year to
approximately HK$153.5 million for the Year Under Review. The
increase was primarily attributable to (1) increase in operation scale;
and (2) higher advertising and promotion expenses for the launch of
new promotions and active promotional campaigns mounted on
various social media platforms to increase the public awareness of
the brands.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately HK$0.7 million from
approximately HK$3.0 million for the Previous Year to approximately
HK$3.7 million for Year Under Review.

Income tax

Income tax expense amounted to approximately HK$5.8 million for
the Previous Year and income tax credit of approximately HK$3.4
million for the Year Under Review. The tax credit was primarily
attributable to deferred tax during the Year Under Review.

Loss for the year
Loss attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$20.5 million for the Year Under Review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Dividend

The Board does not recommend or declare the payment of any
dividend for the Year Under Review (2022: Nil).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Financial Resources

We continue to maintain a stable financial position with cash and
cash equivalents HK$116.9 million as at 31 March 2023 (2022:
HK$65.7 million). Our working capital, excluding those lease liabilities
relating to properties leased for own use, was HK$31.2 million (2022:
HK$35.1 million). With our steady cash inflow from operations,
coupled with sufficient cash and bank balances, we have adequate
liquidity and financial resources to meet the working capital
requirements as well as to fund its expansion plans in the next
financial year.

As at 31 March 2023, most of our cash and bank balances were
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, United State Dollar and Renminbi.

Indebtedness

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings

As at 31 March 2023, our Group had approximately HK$19.2 million
outstanding interest-bearing bank borrowings (2022: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As at 31 March 2023, our Group had no significant contingent
liabilities and guarantees (2022: Nil).

Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2023, there was no charge on the assets of our
Group except for the time deposits of approximately HK$62.4 million
(2022: approximately HK$62.5 million) pledged for banking facilities
as security for credit card services programmes.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total borrowings divided
by total share capital and reserves, was approximately 12.7% as at
31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Indebtedness (Continued)

Foreign Currency Risk

Our Group carries out its business mainly in Hong Kong and most of
its transactions are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar. Our Group did
not experience any material impact or difficulties in liquidity on its
operations resulting from the fluctuation in exchange rate, and no
hedging transaction or forward contract arrangement was made by
the Group during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022. The
Group will closely monitor related risk in the future.

Interest Rate Risk

Our Group has no significant interest rate risk. Our Group currently
does not have any specific policies in place to manage interest rate
risk and has not entered into any interest rate swap transactions to
mitigate interest rate risk, but will closely monitor related risk in the
future.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no significant investments
held by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023, nor
were there any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the reporting period. Save as
disclosed in this report, there is no plan authorised by the Board for
other material investments or additions of capital assets as at the
date of this report.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has a total of 334 employees (2022:
366). Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration, of our Group
were approximately HK$177.5 million for the year ended 31 March
2023 (2022: approximately HK$125.3 million). Remuneration is
determined with reference to various factors such as comparable
market salaries and work performance, time commitment and
responsibilities of each individual. Employees are provided with
relevant in-house and/or external training from time to time. In
addition to a basic salary, year-end bonuses are offered to employees
who performed outstandingly to attract and retain eligible employees
to contribute to our Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRD

Prospects

The business environment in Hong Kong remained challenging during
the Year Under Review. Nevertheless, the Group did not slow down
its pace of development amid the uncertain economic environment.
Instead, it actively formulated deployment plans and invested
resources to capture the anticipated surge in demand for medical
aesthetic services and products following the pandemic. During the
Year Under Review, the Group launched a number of advertising and
promotional activities, including the expansion and relocation of the
CosMax+ Central branch to enhance customer experience with a
brand-new environment and facilities. In addition, socialites and
entrepreneurs were invited to share their insights on “Authentic
Beauty”; VITAE also worked with international celebrity Fala Chen
again for advertising and promotion. With the omni-channel
advantage, XOVE launched several product promotion campaigns
with celebrities and influencers, and organised large-scale customer
events to enhance brand awareness and customer loyalty. The
aforementioned advertising and promotional activities further
enhanced the image of the three brands and attracted new
customers.

As the core brand of the Group, in addition to enhancing its brand
image and continuing to introduce new treatment services in the past
year, CosMax+ is also actively considering the expansion of its
existing operation scale in order to serve more customers and provide
them with a more spacious and more comfortable environment, thus
optimising and enriching the customer experience.

Since launch, VITAE has established a steadily growing customer
base. In the future, it will continue to uphold the concept of
“maintaining a perfect balance between beauty and health, and
emanating beauty from within”, and serve more customers who value
“healthy beauty”.

During Year Under Review, XOVE was officially staged in Sephora, a
world-renowned beauty retail group, in Mainland China. Sephora has
more than 360 stores in Mainland China, offering an excellent
platform for the Group and XOVE to increase brand awareness. In
order to expand and improve the coverage of its products, the Group
plans to launch new product series during the year to attract more
potential customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Prospects (Continued)

Although marketing expenses and other expenses increased during
the year due to the development of the Mainland market, the Group’s
financial position remained healthy, with a significant increase in
revenue from the Previous Year and ample cash to support future
development.

With the containment of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
government’s economic stimulus measures, consumer confidence
has continued to improve, and the number of tourists visiting Hong
Kong has gradually increased. The Group is optimistic about the local
market and future economic recovery. In addition to the investments
made last year to prepare for the post-COVID rebound, the team has
worked hard to expand into new markets and mapped out the
Group’s future development. Some plans are already beginning to
bear fruit. Among them, the sales of XOVE products in Sephora, for
the first three months in Mainland China were encouraging, and it
ranked among Sephora’s best-selling beauty brands in Mainland
China, marking a significant step forward for the brand and the
Group’s growth in the country.

From 2023 to 2024, the Group will strive to build on the foundation it
has established over the years and consolidate the development of
the past year for long-term, steady growth. Leveraging its good
reputation and loyal customer base, coupled with the strategic long-
term business layout, the Group is confident that it can continue to
utilise its advantages in the future, maintain its leading position in the
market, further increase its revenue and profit contribution, and create
returns for shareholders and long-term value for stakeholders.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2BEREHE

Executive Director

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (Z3) (with former name Lai Chi, Gigi (32%)),
aged 51, is an executive Director, chairlady of the Board and chief
executive officer. She is also the chairlady of the nomination
committee and a member of the remuneration committee. She is
responsible for the overall management, branding and strategic
planning, marketing and development of the Group. Ms. LAl Ka Yee
Gigi (“Mrs. Gigi Ma”) joined the Group in July 2009 and was appointed
as a Director on 6 July 2016, re-designated as an executive Director
and appointed as chairlady of the Board and the chief executive
officer on 19 December 2016. She is also a director of certain

subsidiaries of the Group.

Before founding the Group, Mrs. Gigi Ma was active in the fim and
television entertainment industry between 1985 and 2008. She
withdrew from the film and television entertainment industry in late
2008 and has since devoted her full effort to the development of the
business in the medical aesthetic service industry.

Mr. HO, Tsz Leung Lincoln ({1 ¥ %), aged 47, joined the Group in
July 2019 as the chief brand officer in which he has been responsible
for formulating and leading the Group’s brand strategies, as well as
overseeing the Group’s marketing and sales operations. Mr. Ho was
appointed as an executive Director on 22 April 2020 and promoted to
Chief Operation Officer effective at May 2020. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Ho worked in the role of art/creative director in a number
of advertising firms, namely DDB Worldwide, Leo Burnett etc., whose
clients included a world renowned international fast-food corporation,
personal skin care corporations, an automobile corporation and a
major transport corporation in Hong Kong. He has also contributed in
the film industry that earned him a nomination in The 24th Hong Kong
Film Awards in 2005.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2EREHE

Mr. Ho spent a decade at Neo Derm Group Ltd, a medical aesthetics
company, from 2006 to 2016 with his last position as marketing
communication director, and then worked in Airport Authority Hong
Kong in 2016 as assistant general manager in the retail and
advertising department. He rejoined Neo Derm Group Ltd from 2017
to 2019 with his last position as digital marketing director. He had
also worked for BTL Hong Kong Limited as regional marketing
director before joining the Group.

Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor of Arts in Design from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2002, as well as a Diploma in Design Studies
in 1999 from the same university.

Dr. LAM Ping Yan (#% &), 71, joined the Group in July 2020 as an
executive Director. He had been serving as a public officer for 34
years from 1978 to 2012. He commenced his career as a public
officer when he joined at the then Medical and Health Department
(now known as Department of Health) of Hong Kong in 1978 as a
Medical and Health Officer before being promoted to Senior Medical
and Health Officer in 1984, junior directorate officer (Principal Medical
Officer) of the Department of Health in 1989. He was appointed as
Chief Port Health Officer and Community Physician in 1993, Assistant
Director of Health in 1994, Deputy Director of Health in 1996 and
Director of Health in 2003. During Dr. Lam’s tenure as a public officer,
he had been involved in the prevention and control of severe acute
respiratory syndrome (SARS) and swine flu in Hong Kong as Deputy
Director of Health and Director of Health, respectively, before he
retired from his 34 years tenure as a public officer in 2012.

Dr. Lam played and continues to play an active role in the public
health community. He has been a life member of the Society of
Community Medicine and life associate member of the Hong Kong
AIDS Foundation, since 1990 and 1991, respectively. Between 1995
and 2013, he had served as a Justice of the Peace. He was a
member of the Council of Smoking and Health from 1996 to 2003.
Between 2001 and 2012, he was a member of the Medical Council of
Hong Kong. Between 2003 and June 2012, he served as (i)
Commissioner of Auxiliary Medical Service; (i) Chairman of Chinese
Medicines Board; (i) Chairman of International Advisory Board of
Hong Kong Chinese Materia Medica Standards; (iv) Chairman of
Pharmacy and Poisons Board; (v) Chairman of Radiation Board; (vi)
Member of the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong; (vii) Member

20  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2023

fa] S £ 72 2006 FF £ 2016 FF + F B (TR B2 2
EANRMEBEXASEBR AR - &ER
UAMSENRE  HER2016 FET B #
S EIRRTERBEEIREEIIRALE - BR
2017 FE2019F A MAREEZXEAEE

BIRAR - RGBT ABIEEHEE - RIA
KNEE R 1% 78 % R BTL Hong Kong Limited

TR HBE -

IR 2002 FMEEBE T KERAE
Eiém’mmwwiﬁﬁ—%ﬁém%&
FESUR -

MRBELE 715 R2020F 7 BIMAKRE
EEERITES - HHR1978 FE 2012 F /)34
FHEH-—EEARKE - BR1978F A E
MWESEREERE (RBEEER) WIETE
BEEARBEENBIELE  HEMN1984F
EAASREARMIBEEFAFEEN
MBRERRBEE(HERELE) - HAR1993F &
ZIEABEOHETARMSBEERIEAE
R194 FEABFEZNEER » 11996 F
BERAAFEERBRNN2003FEFH AREE
EER MEBERTLAKEEHM  BBHRIE
AREERERKFEEERZETENEE
SHEFRAEAGEESE(DT) RERRGEL
1B E18R2012F B34 F M RTS EE R -

PREEAE B BB T A R RBEEERE
Ao BB 1990F K 1991 FED Rl At 2 B &
BeRGeEREBELRESRRGEE -

WRI1995F Z2013F B A N F LT o R
1996 F £ 2003 F AR IEHEREE®KE °
2001 FE2012F - BAEBBEBLZE SN
B R2003F £2012F 68 - B A()EE®
BIRXARES © ()P EEAREJE ¢ (i) BB P BT
ERERZESEFE: (WERERSHEEIE

RER VESEERERE : (VBB B
EREZEEKE : (vi)RBEKE R (vii) &=t



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2BEREHE

of the Chinese Medicine Practitioners Board; and (vii) Member of the
Hospital Authority Board. Between 2004 and 2005, Dr. Lam was a
Council member of the Hong Kong College of Community Medicine.
He was Deputy Chairman of Cancer Coordinating Committee from
2006 to June 2012. Between 2008 and June 2012, he was the Vice
Chairman of the Working Group on Diet and Physical Activity and
Steering Committee on Prevention and Control of Non-
Communicable Diseases. He was the Vice Chairman of Working
Group on Alcohol and Health and Working Group on Injuries from
2009 to June 2012. On various occasions, he had served as a
temporary advisor to the World Health Organization (“WHO”) on policy
and strategy of development of traditional medicine and control of
non-communicable diseases. He served as Chairman to the
2009/2010 Session of the Regional Committee Meeting of the
Western Pacific Region of WHO. Between 2010 and 2013, Dr. Lam
served as an Adviser of the Overseas Expert Consulting Committee
of the Ministry of Health of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) for
Health Care Reform. In 2012, he was awarded the Silver Bauhinia
Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC. He was further awarded with the Cross-Strait
Contribution Award for Chinese in Tobacco Control by the Chinese
Association on Tobacco Control in the PRC in 2012. He was the
Principal Adviser (International Collaboration) of the National
Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine of PRC between 2012
and 2017.

Dr. Lam graduated from the University of Hong Kong, faculty of
Medicine with his Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery in
1977. He further obtained his Master of Medicine degree in Public
Health from the National University of Singapore in 1992. He is also a
fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine and a registered
specialist in community medicine.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David (Ef#§[El ), aged 74, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is
also a member of audit committee and nomination committee. Mr.
Cheng graduated from the University of Hong Kong in November
1975 with a Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive
experience in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng
has retired from the Head of Shipfinance in the Shipfinance
Department of Credit Agricole CIB with effect from 1 May 2014 and
was the Senior Advisor to the Global Shipping Group of that bank
from June 2014 to June 2016. He was the Honorary Chairman of
Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited for 3 years from 2016. Credit
Agricole CIB and Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited are third
parties independent of the Company and not connected persons of
the Company. Mr. Cheng was a member of the Working Group on
Transportation under the Hong Kong Economic Development
Commission, a member of Hong Kong Maritime and Port Board, and
the chairman of the Promotion and External Relations Committee of
the Maritime and Port Board till March 2018. In May 2015, Mr. Cheng
was conferred the Distinction of “Chevalier de I’'Ordre National du
Mérite” by the French Government. Mr. Cheng has been an
independent non-executive director of Singamas Container Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 716) since 1 November 2012 and the
independent non-executive director of Sincere Navigation Corp (T
A 38 B 19 B R A A1) which is listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
with effect from 28 June 2019. He is the Honorary Treasurer of the
Hong Kong Maritime Museum from 2016 to 2022.

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo (2§ & ), aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is the
chairman of the audit and remuneration committees and a member of
the nomination committee. Mr. Cheng has been a member and fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since
December 1987 and August 1998 respectively and a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
since January 1999, and a member and fellow of the Institute of
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Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada since November 1990
and December 2019. Mr. Cheng has over 30 years of experience in
auditing, finance and business management. He has been the sole
proprietor of Erik Cheng & Co., Certified Public Accountants in Hong
Kong since 1999.Mr. Cheng graduated from the University of Kent,
England with a Bachelor’'s degree in Accounting in July 1983 and a
Master’s degree in Accounting and Finance from the London School
of Economics, England in August 1984. Mr. Cheng currently also acts
as an independent non-executive director of a number of companies
listed on the Stock Exchange, namely, CSI Properties Limited (Stock
Code: 497), Top Spring International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3688), Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (Stock Code: 194), Chia
Tai Enterprises International Limited (Stock Code: 3839), CPMC
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 906), Somerley Capital Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8439) and Kidsland International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 2122). Mr. Cheng currently act as an
independent non-executive director of Chong Hing Bank Limited,
which privatized on 30 September 2021 and C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd,
which privatized on 18 June 2022. Mr. Cheng retired as an
independent non-executive director of DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 620) with effect from 29
May 2020. Mr. Cheng resigned as an independent non-executive
director of C.P. Lotus Corporation which was delisted on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 121) with effect from 28
October 2019, resigned as an independent non-executive director of
HKC (Holdings) Limited which was delisted on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 190) with effect from 8 June 2021 and
resigned as an independent non-executive director of Goldbond
Group Holdings Limited which was delisted on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 172) with effect from 2 August 2021.
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Mr. LI Wai Kwan (Z{2%), aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is a member of the
audit committee and remuneration committee. Mr. Li has many years
of experience in accounting, finance and investment management.
Mr. Li is the chief financial officer of Crystal International Group
Limited (stock code: 2232), which is principally engaged in
manufacturing of fashion products since November 2018, while he is
responsible for finance matters for that group. From March 2005 to
September 2006, he worked for Esprit Holdings Limited, which is
listed on the Main Board (stock code: 330) and principally engaged in
manufacturing, retail and wholesale distribution of fashion products,
and he served as a vice president of operational finance and a vice
president of finance in Asia Pacific region, while he was responsible
for finance and operational matters. From October 2006 to
September 2010, he was a vice president of COFCO China Agri-
Industries Holdings Limited, which is listed on the Main Board (stock
code: 606) and principally engaged in trading on agricultural raw
materials, manufacturing and distributing food products, while he was
responsible for finance, investment and company secretarial matters.
Mr. Li was a managing director and director of the board of COFCO
Agricultural Industrial Investment Fund Management Company
Limited, which is principally engaged in asset management, from
September 2010 to October 2011, and he was responsible for
managing overall business and investment matters. Mr. Li was a
managing director of Origo Partners PLC, whose shares are listed on
the London Stock Exchange and principal business is private equity
investment, from November 2011 to January 2013, and he was
responsible for investment matters. Mr. Li was the chief financial
officer of Zhuhai Dahenggin Company Limited and its affiliate Zhuhai
Dahenggin Property Company Limited, which is principally engaged
in primary land development, real estate development, theme park
construction and operation, city operational management, and asset
management in Henggin Free Trade Zone, from August 2013 to
October 2018, while he was responsible for finance, investment and
fund management matters.

24 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2023

ZEESLE 51 R20165F12 4190 &
ZERBUFNTES - BHAERZESRE
MEZEEEKE - TREREH  UHRIEEE
WA ERKE - B20184F 11 A - ZHAER
ma b E R EEAR AR (RMDARSE 2232 - =
ENEREERRE)ETERUBE 88
ZEBME % TE - 5200549 3 A £20064F
98 BERERLETHEBERIERERA
A (B ARER : 330 EBMEREERRE -
TERMBSHE) TR EEEENKIAE
RERKRUHBRGBYE  aEVBEREELE-
200610 A= 20109 A » HEREIR E
TR BRI A R A B (AR5 5E - 606
FTERERERMBMES  RORERDH)
BERBY  BaEVE RERRAAWET
fE° B2010F9 AE2011 4108 » THAR
TEEREEXEACEREREARA(EER]
FEEER ) ETESHERERESEEE
BEBREXBEERIRETIIE - B2011F 11
AZE2013F1 A - TEETERO N RBFE
%532 5 Ff ) Origo Partners PLC (= E 7
BLERERE)EIEFRKE aERE
TtE- B2013F 8 AE2018F 107 » Th A&
REBAEERGBRAFREEBEARKE
ABRZEXBRAR(EERERZEAERED
T —AFE EHERE  FTREARER
EE MMEEEEREAEEE)ETEREY
BE - AEME BRERESEEIF-



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2BEREHE

Mr. Li is a director of Hong Kong Research Institute of Textiles and
Apparel since 2022, a director, executive committee member and
honorary treasurer of the Hong Kong — ASEAN Economic
Cooperation Foundation since 2015, an Honorary President of the
Institute of Certified Management Accountants — Hong Kong &
Macau Branch since 2018, a Chairman of Institute of Public
Accountants — Hong Kong Branch since 2019, a Committee
member, SME committee of ACCA — Hong Kong Branch since
2019, and a General Committee member and Chairman of
Professional Education and Training Committee of the Chamber of
Hong Kong Listed Companies since 2020.

Mr. Li was the chairman of Investor Relations Committee of the
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies from 2008 to 2010, the
honorary vice chairman of China Enterprise Reputation and Credibility
Association (Overseas) in 2009, the chairman of Partnership and
Promotion Committee of the Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association from 2009 to 2010, a member of the Organising
Committee of Directors of the Year Awards 2010 organised by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2010, a committee member of the
PRC committee of the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity
Association in 2011, a committee member of Public Awareness
Committee of Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts in 2016, and a
board member of Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada —
Hong Kong Chapter from 2017 to 2020. Mr. Li was a member of
Finance Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Authority from 2010
to 2012. Mr. Li was the guest lecturer of the Macau University of
Science and Technology in 2016.

Mr. Li graduated from University of Toronto in Canada with a bachelor
of commerce degree with distinction in November 1995. He further
obtained a master of business administration degree from Schulich
School of Business, York University in Canada in November 1996.
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Mr. Li was admitted as a member of the Institute of Certified
Management Accountants in August 2000, a chartered financial
analyst of the Chartered Financial Analysts Institute in September
2001, a certified general accountant of the Certified General
Accountants Association of Canada in October 2002, a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in October 2004, a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in May 2005, an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountant in England & Wales in June 2008, a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in April
2010, a chartered professional accountant of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of British Columbia, Canada in June 2015,
a member of Hong Kong Business Accountants Association in
December 2015, a fellow of the Institute of Certified Management
Accountants in April 2016, a member of the Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute in August 2016, a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountant in England & Wales in June 2018, a fellow of
the Institute of Public Accountants in July 2019, a fellow of the
Institute of Financial Accountants in July 2019, a business and finance
professional of the Institute of Chartered Accountant in England &
Wales in December 2019, and a member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Director Association in December 2019.

Mr. Li is the independent non-executive director of K W Nelson
Interior Design and Constructing Group Limited (stock code: 8411)
since 18 November 2016. Mr. Li was the independent non-executive
director of China Asia Valley Group Limited (formerly known as China
Graphene Group Limited) (stock code: 63) from 1 February 2018 to
30 November 2018, the independent non-executive director of China
Greenfresh Group Company Limited (stock code: 6183) from 20 July
2018 to 5 June 2020, the independent non-executive director of
Enterprise Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 1808) from 27
April 2017 to 12 October 2020 and the independent non-executive
director of TL Natural Gas Holdings Limited (stock code: 8536) from
18 May 2018 to 30 September 2021.

Note: The Group’s business are under the direct responsibility of the above executive
Directors who are the senior management of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Code

The Group recognises the importance of achieving the highest
standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its
stakeholders, and the Board is fully committed to doing so. The
Board believes that high standards of corporate governance provide
a framework and solid foundation for the Group to manage business
risks, enhance transparency, achieve high standard of accountability
and protect stakeholders’ interests.

The Company has adopted the principles and the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 March 2023,
the Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the CG Code, except the deviation stipulated below.

According to the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Under the current management
structure of the Company, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (“Mrs. Gigi Ma”) is the
chairlady of the Board (the “Chairlady”) and chief executive officer of
the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”). As Mrs. Gigi Ma has
been leading the Group as the Group’s Chief Executive Officer and
sole director of each of major subsidiaries since the establishment of
the relevant major subsidiaries, the Board believes that it is in the best
interest of the Group to continue to have Mrs. Gigi Ma acting as the
Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer for more effective management
and planning of the Group. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from provision C.2.1 of the CG Code is acceptable and
appropriate in the circumstances and currently does not propose to
separate the functions of chairman and the chief executive officer.

Purpose, Values, Strategy and Culture

The core purpose of the Company is to create value for its
shareholders. It strives to become a well renowned enterprise in the
provision of medical aesthetic services and sale of skin care products
and aims to be the powerhouse of Women'’s Love Brands that uplift
women 1o be the best vision of themselves with our comprehensive
range of customized medical aesthetics treatment services, skincare
& cosmetic products, and health supplements. Its mission is to lead
the development of the industry and set the industry benchmarks. In
this connection, it endeavours to maintain accountability to its
employees, consumers, shareholders, the society, and the
environment. These purposes and values shape the Company’s
strategy, which are geared towards building a trusted and beloved
enterprise whereby values for shareholders are created.
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Compliance of Code of Conduct for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Having made specific
enquiries to all the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by
the Company during the Year Under Review.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

During the year and up to the date of this report, the composition of
the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
(“Mrs. Gigi Ma”)

Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln

Dr. Lam Ping Yan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David

Mr. Li Wai Kwan

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has complied
with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least 3 independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) representing
more than one-third of the Board and at least one of the INEDs must
have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. All INEDs also meet the guidelines
for assessment of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Each of the INEDs makes an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of that view that all the INEDs meet the independence
guidelines set out in the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules
and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers the current structure, size and composition of the Board is
performing a balanced and independent monitoring function on
management practices to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy. The Directors and their biographical details as at the date of
this annual report are set out on pages 19 to 26 of this annual report.

Mechanism on Independent Views to the Board

The Company recognises that board independence is critical to good
corporate governance. The Board has established a mechanism is to
enable Directors to seek independent professional advice when
exercising Directors’ duties to ensure a strong independent element
to the decision made by the Board which is key to an effective Board.

According to the mechanism, subject to the prior approval by the
executive Director of the Company (which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed), the Directors may seek
independent legal, financial or other professional advice from advisors
independent of those advising the Company as and when necessary
in appropriate circumstances to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities effectively, either on the Company’s affairs or in
respect of their fiduciary or other duties, at the Company’s expense.
In case of the Board is seeking independent professional advice, prior
approval must be given by the executive Director of the Company
(which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed).

The Board will review this mechanism on an annual basis to ensure
the implementation and effectiveness of this mechanism.

Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer. As Mrs. Gigi
Ma has been leading the Group as the Group’s Chief Executive
Officer and sole director of each of major subsidiaries since the
establishment of the relevant major subsidiaries, the Board believes
that it is in the best interest of the Group to continue to have Mrs. Gigi
Ma acting as the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer for more
effective management and planning of the Group. Therefore, the
Board considers that the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code is acceptable and appropriate in the circumstances and
currently does not propose to separate the functions of chairman and
the chief executive officer.

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer who is
responsible for overall management, branding and strategic, planning,
marketing and development of our Group. She also is a member of
remuneration committee and chairing the Nomination Committee.
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Roles and Responsibility of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes controlling resources allocation of the Company and
leading the Company to strive for success. It oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management
and performances. The management team is delegated with the
authority and responsibility by the Board for the daily management of
the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by
the Board to the management include (1) the preparation of interim
and annual reports and announcements for the Board’s approval
before publishing; (2) implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures; and (3) compliance with
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and rules and
regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine the
appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures
are in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
objectives.

Board/Board Committee Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Company, and to
review and approve the Company’s interim and annual results. Four
regular board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March
2023 and the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is
set out on page 31 of this report. At the Board meeting held on 26
June 2023, the Board has approved, among other matters, the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairlady in preparing the agenda for
meetings to comply with all applicable rules and regulations. The
agenda and the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to
Directors at least three days before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to
Directors for their comment before signature of the chairperson. The
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.
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Attendance/Number of Meetings Held
i/ BTEERY

Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Annual
Board  Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENZEE HMZEE REZEE B3R
Ezgex EE S S kYN
Executive Directors HiTES

Mrs. Gigi Ma SROmaL 474 - 11 11 11
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln (ERR bk 4/4 - - - 1/1
Dr. Lam Ping Yan MEEEL 4/4 - _ _ 1

Independent Non-Executive Directors By #{TEE
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David EEBEEE 4/4 2/2 - 11 11
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BHMEE 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FRERE 4/4 2/2 11 - 11

Appointment, Re-election, Rotation and Removal of
Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of Members after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, not less than one-
third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation provided that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years.
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to further enhance and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company received from the Directors the
following records of the training attended during the year ended 31
March 2023.

EEREEXERE
RARSBFBEESLHESESEEE#E—
BN R B E 2 I R ikee - BRI EE
EEEEEIEARYAENER THES
SIELER - EFHUERARRIRBEUTHSE
RELZE2023F 3 31 HIEFEMLEMNET
F08F o

Nature of Trainings

EIEE
Type 1 Type 2
E18 £28

Executive Directors BITES
Mrs. Gigi Ma BRI 2+ 4
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln Al FsestsE v
Dr. Lam Ping Yan MERBEE 4 v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAFHITES
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo LGRS & 4 4
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David SR B % A 4 4
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FRELLE v
Type of trainings: HEFIEREY
1. Reading materials. 1. BB o
2. Attending training sessions/conference/forum/workshops/seminars. 2. LSRR g% w8 TEY g -

Corporate Governance Function

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board, which include (a) develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make recommendations
to the Board; (b) review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management of the
Company and its subsidiaries; (c) review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries; (e) review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in the corporate
governance report of the Company required to be prepared pursuant
to the Listing Rules; and (f) consider, review and decide any other
topics, as authorised by the Board. During the year, the Board
reviewed and discussed the corporate governance policy of the
Group and was satisfied with the effectiveness of its corporate
governance policy.
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Audit Committee

An audit committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference following the Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the
Listing Rules and the CG Code. The audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) is authorised to commit Company funds in
order to obtain advice from outside legal counsel, accountants,
investigatory services or other expert advice. Details of the authority
and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Fu
Kwok David, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Li Wai Kwan and Mr. Cheng
Yuk Wo is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
March 2023 and the meeting was attended by the Company’s
external auditor so that the members of the Audit Committee could
exchange their views and concerns on the financial reporting process
of the Group with the auditor.

During the Year Under Review, the Audit Committee had reviewed
with the management and the external auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, internal controls, and financial reporting matters including
the following:

° the review of the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022;

° the review of the interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2022;

° the recommendation to the Board for the proposal for re-
appointment of the external auditor of the Company and
approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor; and

o the review of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out on
page 31 of this report.
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Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee has been established by the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of reference
following the Rules 3.25 to Rules 3.26 of the Listing Rules and the
CG Code and the majority of the members of the Remuneration
Committee are INEDs and responsible to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management. Details of the authority and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director,
namely Mrs. Gigi Ma and two INEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and
Mr. Li Wai Kwan. Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 March 2023 with the presence of all committee members. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee made recommendations to the
Board regarding the remuneration packages and performance
bonuses for the Directors and senior management of the Company
and assessed performance of executive Directors.

The Group’s businesses are under the direct responsibility of the
above executive Directors who are the senior management of the
Company. Details of the amount of Directors’” emoluments for the
year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

Remuneration Policy for Directors

The Company has a remuneration policy for directors. Each of the
directors will receive a fee which is subject to an annual adjustment at
a rate to be reviewed by the remuneration committee and be
determined at the discretion of the Board. The remuneration of the
directors is determined, inter alia, by reference to the relevant
director’s experience, responsibilities, workload and time devoted to
the Group.
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Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with
specific terms of reference following the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for, amongst other things, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, considering
the reappointment of the Directors and succession planning for
Directors and making recommendations to the Board in respect of
the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority and responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Mrs. Gigi Ma and two INEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David and
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo. Mrs. Gigi Ma is the chairlady of the Nomination
Committee.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 March 2023 with the presence of all committee members. During
the year ended 31 March 2022, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board and board diversity
policy, discussed matters regarding the retirement and re-election of
Directors and succession planning for directors and assessment of
the independence of INEDs. The Nomination Committee concluded
that members of the Board have possessed the expertise and
independence to carry out the Board’s functions and responsibilities.

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedure of
appointing and re-appointing a Director. The selection criteria used in
assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter alia, such
candidate’s academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant experience in the industry, character and integrity etc.
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Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the nomination committee reviews
the structure, size and composition of the Board periodically and
make recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. When it is necessary
to fill a casual vacancy or appoint an additional director, the
nomination committee identifies or selects candidates as
recommended to the committee pursuant to the criteria set out in the
Nomination Policy. Based upon the recommendation of the
nomination committee, the Board deliberates and decides on the
appointment. In addition, every director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation or re-election at least once every three years and shall be
eligible for re-election at each annual general meeting. The nomination
committee shall review the overall contribution and service to the
Company, expertise and professional qualifications of the retiring
directors, who offered himself/herself for re-election at the annual
general meeting, to determine whether such director continues to
meet the criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the basis to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against selection criteria.

For selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not be limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board taking into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time and with due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board’s composition will
be disclosed in the annual report of the Company. The Board will give
adequate consideration to this policy when it identifies suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board.
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As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors,
amongst them, three are INEDs, thereby promoting critical review and
control of the management process. The Board is also characterized
by significant diversity, regardless in terms of age, professional
experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’s composition, the
Nomination Committee considered that the requirements of the Policy
had been met.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its effectiveness.

The Board comprises 5 male directors and 1 female director. As at
31 March 2023, the Company has 334 employees in total comprising
of approximately 306 females and 28 males (a female-to-male ratio of
1:0.092).

The Group when hiring employees considers a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education
background, qualification, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The nomination committee of the
Company will review annually gender diversity in the Group.

Dividend Policy

Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company, dividends may be paid
out of the profits of the Company, or subject to solvency of the
Company, out of sums standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company. However, no dividend shall exceed the
amount recommended by Directors of the Company.
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Declaration and recommendation of payment of dividends of the
Company is subject to the approval of the Directors of the Company,
depending on results of operations, working capital, financial position,
future prospects, and capital requirements, as well as any other
factors which the Directors of the Company may consider relevant
from time to time. Any future declaration, recommendation and
payment of dividends of the Company may or may not reflect the
historical declarations and payments of dividends and will be at the
absolute discretion of the Directors of the Company. The Company
does not have any predetermined dividend payout ratio.

Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements on an on-going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary, for each financial period
with a view to ensure that such financial statement gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and of the results and
cash flows for the financial year. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board has selected
appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which
are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial statements,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and ensured the preparation of the financial statements on the going
concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance, position
and prospects. The interim and annual results of the Company are
announced in a timely manner within the limit of two months and
three months, respectively, after the end of the relevant periods in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all
information and representation contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023.

The responsibility of the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”.
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Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to Ernst & Young is
set out as follows:

Services rendered

ZHET B 2
RAFER - BN T RARH DB
ZBEBIImT -

Fee paid/payable

Frig RS Bt ENER
HK$'000

FHEIT

Audit services ZER 2,000
Non-audit services* JERZBARTE > 1,203

* Non-audit services included tax advisory and other related services.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness. The Board
oversees the overall risk management of the Group and endeavours
to identify, control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The risk
management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems have
been developed with the following features and processes:

(@  The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification: Identifies risks that may potentially affect the
Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment: Assesses the risks identified by using the
assessment criteria developed by the management; and
considers the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response: Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of
the risk assessment; and determines the risk management
strategies and internal control processes to prevent, avoid or
mitigate the risks.
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Risk Monitoring and Reporting: Performs ongoing and periodic
monitoring of the risk and ensures that appropriate internal
control processes are in place; revises the risk management
strategies and internal control processes in case of any
significant change of situation; and reports the results of risk
monitoring to the management and the Board regularly.

(b)  The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems are summarised as follows:

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance
with relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper
maintenance of accounting records for provision of reliable
financial information used within the business or for publication;
ensure that unauthorized access and use of inside information
are strictly prohibited; and to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is currently
of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit
function within the Group in light of the size, nature and complexity of
the Group’s business. Nevertheless the Company engaged an
external professional firm to carry out internal audit functions. It was
decided that the Board would be directly responsible for internal
control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external professional firm as its risk
management and internal control review adviser (“the Adviser”) to
conduct the annual review of the risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 March 2023. Such review is
conducted annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The
scope of review was previously determined and approved by the
Board. The Adviser has reported to the Audit Committee and
management for findings and areas for improvement, if any. The
Board and Audit Committee are of the view that there are no material
internal control defeats noted. All recommendations from the Adviser
are properly followed up by the Group to ensure that they are
implemented within a reasonable period of time. The Board therefore
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.
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Whistleblowing Policy

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy (the “Whistleblowing
Policy”). The purpose of the Whistleblowing Policy is to (i) foster a
culture of compliance, ethical behavior and good corporate
governance across the Group; and (ii) promote the importance of
ethical behavior and encourages the reporting of misconduct,
unlawful and unethical behavior.

The nature, status and the results of the complaints received under
the Whistleblowing Policy are reported to the chairman of the Audit
Committee or the general manager of the risk management
department of the Group. No incident of fraud or misconduct that
have material effect on the Group’s financial statements or overall
operations for the year ended 31 March 2023 has been discovered.
The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed annually by the Audit
Committee to ensure its effectiveness.

Anti-corruption Policy

The Board has adopted an anti-corruption policy (the “Anti-corruption
Policy”). The Group is committed to achieve the highest standards of
integrity and ethical behaviour in conducting business. The Anti-
corruption Policy forms an integral part of the Group’s corporate
governance framework. The Anti-corruption Policy sets out the
specific behavioural guidelines that the Group’s personnel and
business partners must follow to combat corruption. It demonstrates
the Group’s commitment to the practice of ethical business conduct
and the compliance of the anti-corruption laws and regulations that
apply to its local and foreign operations. In line with this commitment
and to ensure transparency in the Group’s practices, the Anti-
corruption Policy has been prepared as a guide to all employees of
the Group and third parties dealing with the Group.

The Anti-corruption Policy is reviewed and updated periodically to
align with the applicable laws and regulations as well as the industry
best practice.
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Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information
about the Group. The Company has adopted a Policy on Disclosure
of Inside Information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and
procedures for handling and dissemination of inside information. With
those guidelines and procedures, the Group has management
controls in place to ensure that potential inside information can be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the
Board to decide about the need for disclosure.

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
Company secretarial service and has appointed Mr. LO Tai On as its
Company Secretary. Mr. Lo is a member of HKICPA and has over 25
years of experience in the field of company secretarial services. Mr.
Lo has confirmed that for the Year Under Review, he has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. Mr. Lo is not an
employee of our Group and he is responsible for advisory to the
Group on corporate governance matters. Mr. Gordon Leung, our
finance director, is the person who Mr. Lo can contact for the
purpose of code provision C.6.1 of the Code.

Shareholders’ Right

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and to put forward proposal at general meetings.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general
meetings. Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Article 85 of the articles of association of the Company provides that
no person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as
a Director at any general meeting unless a notice signed by a member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting. The written
notice must state that person’s biographical details as required by
Rule 13.51 of Listing Rules. The procedures for shareholder of the
Company to propose a person for election as director is posted on
the Company’s website.

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing by post at 18/F, Nan Fung Tower, 88 Connaught
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. The Company shall forward the
Shareholder(s)’ enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant
Board committees of the Company, where appropriate, to respond to
the Shareholder(s)’ enquiries.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company communicates with its Shareholders and investors
through various means. Timely publication of interim and annual
results announcements on the latest development
of the Company and press release on the Company’s website
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website at
www.hkexnews.hk could make the Shareholders appraise the
Company’s financial position. Shareholders are highly required to pay
attention to these public information. Holding of an annual general
meeting could provide an effective forum for the Shareholders to
share their views with the Board. At the annual general meeting held
in 2022, separate resolutions were proposed by the chairman in
respect of each separate, including re-election of directors and voted
by way of poll. The Company announced the results of the poll in the
manner prescribed under the Listing Rules. The respective chairman
of the Board, audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee had attended the annual general meeting held
in 2022 to ensure effective communication with shareholders. All the
Directors had attended the annual general meeting held in 2022.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy and was
satisfied with the said policy and considered the overall
communication with shareholders was effective with the variety of
communication channels provided above.

Investor Relations

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company’s website and by means of emails to the
investor relations department (email address: miricor@sprg.com.hk).
The management always provides prompt responses to any such
enquiries.

Constitutional Documents

The Company has published its memorandum of association and the
Articles on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. During the year, no amendments were made to the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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About this Report

Introduction

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited is delighted to publish its annual
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (“ESG Report”), demonstrating our continuous
commitment to corporate social responsibility. The Group recognises
the importance of sustainable development. Sustainability is crucial
for the Group’s growth in order to achieve business excellence and
enhance long-term competitiveness. The Group has established and
implemented various policies to manage and monitor our significant
ESG-related risks. Details of the management approaches to
sustainable development of different areas are illustrated in this ESG
Report.

Reporting Period

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers the period from 1
April 2022 to 31 March 2023 (“reporting period”). It includes
disclosure of significant environmental and social impacts of our
Group.

Reporting Scope

Our ESG Report mainly covers subsidiaries of the Group in Hong
Kong which are principally engaged in the provision of medical
aesthetic services and the sale of skin care products accounting for
approximately 93% of the Group total revenue for the year ended 31
March 2023. The Group will continue to optimise and improve the
coverage of disclosure in this ESG Report.
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About this Report (Continued)

Reporting Basis

This ESG Report was prepared in accordance to the ESG Guide set
out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. The Group has complied with
the disclosure requirements of the “comply or explain” provisions set
out in the ESG Guide. During the process of preparation of this ESG
Report, we summarized the Group’s performance in corporate and
social responsibilities based on the principles of “Materiality,

BN E=E )

WG EE

B - B REARE IRIE LRI
OTFIHMIEY HEREAEDIRE - AEE
RSB - EREAESI PR [ TETH
PR | EXMBERTE - EREANEE e
REAREMBIER  RMRBESH - 2
b~ FER—FME | ORA - BT AEEE

Quantitative, Balance and Consistency”. Please refer to the table
below for our understanding and response to such reporting

principles.
Reporting Principles Definitions
HWERA b S

CERPHEEETENRE - F2HTRAT
RIBMIHZFHRE RO K@ E -

Our Response

e pl:v]E

Materiality

BEM

Quantitative

E1t

Balance

Fi

Consistency

— 2t

The issues covered in this ESG Report
should reflect the significant impacts of the
Group on the economy, environment and
society, or the scope of assessments and
decisions of stakeholders being affected.
RRE MG REAREMBENZERR
MAEEHLHE RERTENEATE
SN EX BN L SORKEE -

The ESG Report should disclose key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) in a
measurable manner.

AR - HEREAREBARTET AR
BRERGENER ((BREMER]) -

The ESG Report should reflect fairly the
overall sustainability performance of the
Group.

AR - HEREEME AT RRAEE
MERAHEERERE -

The Group should use consistent disclosure
principles for the preparation of the ESG
Report.

REEEER —BOERERNGRERE -+

gRERRE -
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Through continuous communication with
stakeholders, combined with the Group’s
strategic development and business
operations, we can identify current material
sustainable development issues.
FRP/FBEEPFNERR  HEAEED
RIS R R REEE - ROTAEBE A
MEBERAIFEERES

The Group quantitatively discloses its
environmental and social KPIs, and provides
textual explanations on quantitative
resources.
REESMEBEAIRERIT S@HRE
MR - WL E(LBIRIBH X FRE -

The Group has explained in detail the
sustainable development issues that have a
significant impact in the business, including
the results achieved and the challenges it
faces.
AEBECDFRARENEBEEATED
ARHEERZE  BEMIUSHERR
PR EREY DR EK

The Group will ensure that the disclosure
scope and reporting methods of the ESG
Report are generally consistent every year.
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About this Report (Continued)

Source of Information

The information disclosed in this ESG Report is derived from the
Group’s formal documents, statistics or public information. The Board
is responsible for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of its
contents.

Access to the Report

The ESG Report is available in Chinese and English versions. In case
of any discrepancy between the Chinese and English versions of the
ESG Report, the English version shall prevail. You may access the
Group’s official website at www.miricor.com or the website of the
Stock Exchange at http://www.hkex.com.hk for an electronic copy of
the ESG Report.

Sustainability Governance

The Group has established an ESG framework to promote and
implement the Group’s sustainability strategy. To ensure effective
ESG management, our ESG governance structure, composed of the
Board, ESG working group, respective functional departments and
subordinate companies, was established to promote ESG
management and disclosure. The Board, the ultimate decision-
making body of the Group, is responsible for the Group’s ESG
governance. The Board steers the Group’s sustainable development
forward and bears the overall responsibility of its ESG efforts. In the
future, the Board will continue to strengthen ESG risk management
and improve ESG working mechanism and regulatory processes to
enhance its ESG governance standard. The ESG working group,
serving on the supervision and coordination level, is responsible for
implementing ESG governance strategy, coordinating ESG matters,
compiling ESG reports, and reporting relevant work progress to the
Board on a regular basis. Each functional department and
subordinate company, serving on the execution level, is responsible
for rolling out initiatives set up by the ESG working group and
reporting relevant work progress and data.
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About this Report (Continued) PR A S (&)
Sustainability Governance (Continued) AEEERER(E)
( N\ ( N\
Decision-making level _ The Board
REE " Exg
. J . i J
e . A ' A
SUP.e rvision Eile ESG working group
guideline level W . e RS TN
EERISHE s mEEEs !
. J . i J
( N\ ( N\

Functional departments

Execution level . .
and subordinate companies

\ 4

AR BAHFIR T AT
|\ J |\ J
Stakeholders Engagement E¥HhESHE

Stakeholders engagement is essential to the formulation of strategies I E AIHFEERE B RN BEEAENTSHELXHE
for sustainable development. It allows the Group to understand risks 5 EREE THRES LK ES - KEFD %R
and opportunities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are  Z H X B HE - BEHRBRPINES LRET
important to our business and established various channels for ZREBETHEE -

communication.
Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures
& HE SHERE £t
Government Comply with laws and pay Exchange of Operated, managed and paid taxes
proper tax payments correspondences, relevant  according to laws and regulations,
meetings and information  strengthened safety management;
disclosure accepted government’s supervision,
inspection and evaluation.
BT BPEOIRZEHNTIE BAER  HESERE BREBEADIRMAOIKE BB RANT
(NEN BHE ER B MRLR2ER EXBNEE &
B Mt o
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About this Report (Continued)
Stakeholders Engagement (Continued)

Stakeholder
B E

Expectation

M

RS 8)

BOESHEE)
Engagement channel Measures
SERE Eici

Shareholders and
Investors

BRREEE

Employees

il
i

Customers

NS

Provide high transparency
for information disclosure

and protect shareholder’s
rights and interest

EMEREREHSERE
VA B2 R B2 P SRAE M) B A

Maintain a safe and
respectful workplace,
including equal
opportunities as well as
health and safety

HEZE2MNEENTIFS
P BRETFERE AN
FRzz

Provide safe, high-quality
products and services to
customers

mEFRMftZE - BEN
7 h N2 AR 75

Annual reports, interim
reports and
announcements

Annual general meeting
and other shareholder
meetings

Fih - PHBERLS

RGBS RE R AMABR

ik

Training and briefing
sessions, employee
feedback mechanism, and
fair mechanism for
employment and
promotion
Bk ERE EERE
eI A Kt 3 R B2
R

Customer satisfaction
surveys, customer
feedback activities, day to
day operations/
communications, service
and product complaints
and response mechanisms
EPREREL  BPRE
EE) - BREE B
Bl 75 B 28 mn 3% o B 2] e 1
il

Disclosed company’s information by
publishing annual reports, interim reports
and announcements.

Issued notices of general meeting and
proposed resolutions according to
regulations.

FRTEFR  PHRERAERER
FEH o

EHRRASRE RBBEROIEZRE

-
=

Provided training to employees; provided
employment and promotion practices that
do not discriminate on grounds of gender,
disability, pregnancy, family status, race,
colour, religion, age or other conditions
recognized in law.

RlESREEI  RETER MR - 5
R IEZ2 RKERR B B6 R
- FiRSEMEETRANBERZER
REFEMR -

Strengthened quality management to
ensure safety, high quality production and
communicate with customers to improve
quality of services.
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About this Report (Continued)

Materiality Assessment

The Group attaches importance to the materiality assessment of ESG
issues for the purpose of timely and comprehensive understanding of
the materiality of each ESG issue to the business development of the
Group and the expectation of stakeholders, in order to facilitate the
Group’s effective disclosure of ESG information and continuous
improvement in the management level of relevant issues. The
materiality assessment on ESG issues of the Group during the
reporting period covers the following steps:

Step 1 The Group identified the following 21 issues in
accordance with the disclosure requirements set out in
the ESG Reporting Guide and based on the business
characteristics and daily operation of the Group. These
issues are considered to have impacts on the
environment and the society during our operation.

Step 2 Based on the understanding of the demands and
expectations of stakeholder during the daily operation,
the Group determined the materiality of ESG issues by
benchmarking the key points and the trend of ESG
works of industry peers.

Step 3 Based on the result of the materiality assessment, the
Group discussed and determined the key disclosure of
the ESG Report for the reporting period and the key
points for improvement in the future ESG work of the
Group.
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About this Report (Continued)
Materiality Assessment (Continued)

RS ()
BEMTME(E)

Social Aspects

Environmental Aspects

HEEE BREH

1. Equal opportunity | 5. Prevention of child |9. Complaint handling | 13. Community 14. Exhaust emissions | 18. Water
TEke labor and forced IR investment BERBERR consumption

labor HEHE FEKE
BIEET K%
T

2. Employment and |6. Selection and 10. Protection of 15. Greenhouse gas | 19. Paper and
employee evaluation of intellectual property emissions packaging
benefits suppliers rights BEREHEN materials
EEREEREA BERAMEER | REMEER consumption

RN BEMEE
#

3. Occupational . Control and 11. Customer data 16. Waste 20. Management of
health and safety management on privacy and data management risks associated
REREHRZ2 environmental and security BENER with Environmental

social risks along EFEBARRR and Natural

the supply chain 2 Resources
EERER R ERBERANRE
RERE R ERE RIERER

b

4. Employee . Product and 12. Anti-corruption and 17. Energy 21. Climate change
development and service quality money laundering consumption RIRE(
training EmkREER REFRERE BERERE
EE R A

According to the results of materiality assessment, 5 material topics

(note) are regarded as the most concerned issues of stakeholder and

the Group. While taking into account environmental and social

responsibilities, the Group will pay more attention to the above areas,

and strive to achieve continuous improvement and sustainable

business development.

Note: Presented in bold.
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Environmental Aspects

Emissions

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to sustainable development
and compliance with laws and regulations relating to environmental
protection, the Group endeavors to minimise the environmental
impact of the business activities and maintain green operations and
green office practices.

The Group has established system to ensure environmental
compliance. It seeks to optimise its production by adopting low
energy consumption and environmental pollution techniques and
enhancing the environmental awareness of the employees through
regular trainings. The management team has the overall responsibility
for environmental protection matters within the Group. The
management team reviews the Group’s environmental compliance on
a regular basis. The Group was in strict compliance with related
environmental laws and regulation, including but not limited to Waste
Disposal Ordinance. The Group was not subject to any environmental
claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions during the
reporting period.

In the daily operation of the Group, the major emissions are clinical
wastes and the greenhouse gas (“GHG”) incurred by the purchased
energy resources. Clinical wastes generated by the operations can be
divided into two categories. Category A includes syringes, needles,
cartridges and other sharp instruments which have been used or
which have become contaminated. Category B includes surgical
dressings, swabs dribbling with blood, caked with blood or containing
free-flowing blood. Clinical wastes collection box is placed in each
doctor’s room. Category A waste is collected in Sharps Collector.
Once it is filled up, it must be covered and wait for recycle. Category
B waste is collected in red biochemical wastes plastic bags. All
wastes are separately stored and handled with ledger for record.
Quiallified clinical waste recycling companies are engaged to perform
waste disposal and treatment so as to minimize the impact on the
nature. During the reporting period, the total amount of clinical wastes
recycled by qualified clinical waste recycling companies is 211 kg
(2022: 108 kg).
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

The Group manages the carbon footprint by minimizing the energy
consumption and water consumptions as these activities cause
significant emission of greenhouse gas. Policies and procedures
adopted on resources saving are mentioned in the section “Use of
Resources” of this ESG Report.

RIBEE (#)

B (&)
REEEBBEBEERICHERERE - b
BRI - DERZEEPRRARLER
o L ERRANIE R F RN RS
5 e RERRE [BRER] —5F -

Major air pollutants emissions from vehicles during the reporting RS EE - E@WMBERMEE =R 5400
period as follows: T
Air Pollutant Emissions RSN
Air Pollutant Air Pollutant 22555544 ZRERY  ERFEY
Type of Air Pollutants Emission (kg) Emission (kg) b= g (FR) BEhE(FR)
2023 2022 2023 F 2022 F
Sulphur Dioxide 0.03 0.02 = 0.03 0.02
Nitrogen Oxides 0.69 0.61 REL 0.69 0.61
Particulate Matter 0.05 0.05 FHIZ R T 0.05 0.05

During the reporting period, the GHG emissions from the operation is
set out below:

GHG Emissions
Equivalent CO,  Equivalent CO,

Type of GHG emissions emission (kg) emission (kg)

2023 2022
Scope 1 Direct emissions 4,787.50 4,579.00
Scope 2 Indirect emissions 290,672.79 242,745.05
Total 295,460.29 247,324.05
Intensity 0.68 kg/ 0.71 kg/

Revenue HK$'000  Revenue HK$'000

Note:

The calculation of the greenhouse gas is based on the “Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard” from greenhouse gas protocol and the “How to prepare an ESG
Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the HKEx.

Scope 1:  Direct emissions from vehicles that are owned by the Group

Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity consumed by
the Group

Scope 3: is not disclosed as it is an optional disclosure and the corresponding emission
is not controlled by the Group

R AT - B KR = R AR U
o :

BERBERY

BERE —EHREE “EREE
HHER HHE(TR) HHE(TR)
2023 % 2022

HENEREN 478750 4.579.00
HE 2RI 290,672.79 242,745.05
wsr 295,460.29 247,324.05
B 068T%/ 071F%/
WaETET WaETAT

/Dniﬁ‘égfﬁﬁﬁf?mx* RATEN [REFARMESEL]
B2 PTARMEY [ANERELRE - e REA®MSE — M

= RIGHRANURRERES FE -

GET: RAARBEEENERIEZIN

BE2: RENEEEFENINEE N PTELZ MRIER

BES: FEEEIEIE B MRIB LI m A S B
W R
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Use of Resources

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environment, Health and Safety Policy”,
the Group strives to improve the efficient use of natural resources,
including energy such as minimize waste streams and emissions and
implement effective recycling program. The Group also adopted
“Environmental Office Practices” in order to use resource more
efficiently. Some of the key measures are as follows:

Energy consumption by the Group during the reporting period is set

RIBEE (#)

&R A

MAEBMEBE  RERTEREIFEE -
REEHARSLRERAE RN RER -
a0 BE 37 R HE e B R A R B 3 3
et ) o AEBEIRA [BRPASHER] - S
FAMKMBEAER - £ T X EHBOT -

REHRE - AEEFTERZEREATINT

out below:
Energy Consumption EAGNEE:

Energy consumed Energy consumed ERERE ERERE
Type of energy (kWh) (kWh)  gRER (TRE) (TRE)
2023 2022 2023F 2022
Unleaded petrol 17,134.33 16,388.10 &M 17,134.33 16,388.10
Purchased electricity 474,515.00 385,625.00 INEE N 474,515.00 385,625.00
Total 491,649.33 399,013.10 &zt 491,649.33 399,013.10
Energy intensity 1.14 KWh/ 1.14 KWh/ HREE 114FRE/ 114 FRE/
Revenue HK$'000  Revenue HK$'000 WS TETT WETFEL

Paper Saving B R4

In office, we encourage the employee to use both sides of paper and
use suitable font size/shrinkage mode to minimise pages, if possible.
Besides, use electronic media is recommended for circulation/
communication, to minimize using paper (e.g. without unnecessary
cover page and fax). During the reporting period, the total amount of
recycled paper disposed at landfills is 576 kg (2022: 1,302 kg).

Water Conservation

Employee should report leaking faucet or pipe to the relevant authority
and turn off the tap when not in use. During the reporting period, the
total consumption of the water and water intensity per employee is
229.00 m® and 0.0005 m¥Revenue HK$’'000, respectively (2022:
95.96 m? and 0.0003 m?#Revenue HK$’000).
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Electricity Conservation

The electrical appliance should be set as energy saving mode where
possible. For computers, the idle automatically mode is 20 minutes or
less. The set room temperature should be set in a range from 20°C to
25.5°C. The ideal optimal temperature is 25.5°C. Also, switch off
unnecessary lighting and power supply should be switched off when
they are not in use.

Green Pantry

Employee are encouraged to use reusable cutleries, cups and
glasses and use environmental friendly cleaning products (e.g.
biodegradable or phosphate free detergent, refillable soap, etc.).

Packaging Material

The major packaging material used in our business are mainly paper
and plastic bottle. The consumption of those material during the
reporting period is summarized below:

IRIZEEME (&)
HHHAE

BREZAVERNERAHOER - LEKM
5 BHHEBEENB200EHIURKN - ZHE
FR20°CE285CEHE - BEKERE A
25.5°C ° Ith4h - RIS T BRI E Y - mEIRA
FETE T A RF A 2 o

BEIRKE

SEERFERATEMAER  HMRIBRMIAR
8 RERRIE R EE dn (DI 20 A] A= B R =X T = Bt
LB ORE - AT ARRE)

BEME
BPOEBANEZEREMHEERMARK
B - RIEHRE - ZEMEARERER 0
T

Packaging Material Consumption BEMEERE
Packaging material Amount (kg) Amount (kg) aEHE HEE(TR) HEE(TR)
2023 2022 2023 F 2022
Paper 92,892.95 88,347.10 4R 92,892.95 88,347.10
Plastic bottle 156,902.23 94,961.01 3l 156,902.23 94,961.01

In view of our continuous effort, we target to maintain zero substantial
non-compliance case in relation to the emission of exhaust gases,
GHG, non-hazardous clinical waste, energy consumption and water
consumption in coming five years.

EREMNFES S BANBERRERKE
FARER RERE EZTBEERY &
RHRRNERNBIN R TERTARE
>\Rl o
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

The Environment and Natural Resources

According to the Group’s “Environmental, Health and Safety Policy”,
the Group raises staff’'s awareness of environmental issues through
education and training and enlist their support in improving our
performance, promote environmental awareness amongst our
customers, business partners and shareholders and support
community activities in relation to environmental protection and
sustainability and evaluate regularly and monitor past and present
business activities impacting upon health, safety and environmental
matters. With the integration of policies mentioned in sessions
“Emissions” and “Use of Resource”, the Group is allowed to minimize
the impacts to the environment and natural resources.

Climate Change

The Group is committed to mitigating the climate change and
enhancing its resilience to adapt to the increasing threat of climate-
related consequences.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks
(including significant climate-related issues) by the Group are
summarised as follows:

Risk Identification: Identifies risks that may potentially affect the
Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment: Assesses the risks identified by using the
assessment criteria developed by the management; and considers
the impact and consequence on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Risk Response: Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the
risk assessment; and determines the risk management strategies and
internal control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Climate Change (Continued)

Risk Monitoring and Reporting: Performs ongoing and periodic
monitoring of the risk and ensures that appropriate internal control
processes are in place; revises the risk management strategies and
internal control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and reports the results of risk monitoring to the
management and the Board regularly.

As a result of above risk management process, physical risk and
transitions risks arising from climate change may not bring significant
impacts to the Group’s business. As a supporter of the
recommendations of the Taskforce on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosure (TCFD), the Group has assessed the potential climate
related risks and identified the rising mean temperature and increasing
severity and likelihood of extreme weather events such as rainstorms,
floods, fire and heatwaves as major physical risks impacting our daily
operation.

The Group’s ESG working group is responsible for identifying and
assessing any climate-related risks to which the Group’s operations
are exposed, and updating the Board with the latest news and
developments on climate regulations and industry benchmark. In
order to cope with climate-related risk, the Group implemented
various emergency response mechanism and purchase adequate
insurance against natural disasters so as to cope with extreme
weather.

In the future, we will continue to identify potential business activities
impacting the environment and develop corresponding improvement
measures, so as to further prevent the possible negative impacts of
our operation on climate change.
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Social Aspects

Employment and Labour Practice

Employment

The Group considers human resources as its most important asset,
employees are encouraged to invest in career growth where the
Group provides on-the-job training, and further education supports
that enhance their professional knowledge and skills, thus improving
the overall calibre of its workforce. In addition, the Group also
evaluates employee performance on a regular basis and recognises
and rewards outstanding employees. The Group has established and
implemented “Staff Handbook”, which contains the policies relating to
human resources, covering areas such as compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits
and welfare.

The remuneration package of our employees includes basic salary,
commission and discretionary performance bonus. In order to
incentivise our staff for their contribution to improve our business
performance, we have formulated an incentive scheme for certain
front-line employees with their commission linked to the amount of
sales of our services and products. We offer a fixed commission rate
which applies uniformly across all services and products we offer,
including the sales of one-off treatment, prepaid packages and skin
care products.

It is our objective to provide equality of opportunity for all staff in
relation to all human resources matters. We shall recognize and
reward meritorious performance and provide equal opportunity of
employment irrespective of sex, age, marital status, race, religion,
disability or employment status. The principle of equal opportunities is
applied in all employment policies, in particular to recruitment,
training, career development and promotion of employees. If
employee is treated unequally in the workplace, he/she can report to
the supervisors.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

Further, we offer welfare and benefits for all our employees to foster
their loyalty to our Group. For examples, employee can enjoy discount
for treatment and products in our company. Basically, every rule in
the handbook is set in accordance with all relevant laws and
regulations including but not limited to Employment Ordinance. With
our efforts made on regulation, no case of violation against the labour
rules occurred during the reporting period. The Group will continue to
strive to comply with the relevant laws and regulations.

Below is a detailed breakdown of our employees by gender, age
group, employment type and geographical region as at 31 March
2023:

2023 2022
Number Number
of staff % of total of staff % of total

MHEEEE)

BEREITER(E)

E% (&)

B R ARMIFTEESIREEN R
BHARSHAEEORNE  HINEETEX
AR EERNERFINES - BA L - FME
B0 1648 BI 5 3% R BT 7 48 B = 0 R 48 101 7 )
T BEBTRRUEEIED) - ERMPHNEN
BE T o RO SRS AR PO 30 AR AT T8 R 4% T AR A
HERE A - AREESBES HETREE
RARH) o

R2023F3 A31 HIZIMERI - Fik#E7 - BIE
A R s B B R BRRARANT

2023 F 2022
HEAE EAAE
ETAE B BEIAY AW

By gender

Male 25 8 25 7
Female 289 92 341 93
Total 314 100 366 100
By age group

30 or below 96 31 149 41
31-40 129 41 137 37
41-50 60 19 53 15
51 or above 29 9 27 7
Total 314 100 366 100
By employment type

Contract or short term 12 4 15 4
Full-time 302 96 351 96
Total 314 100 366 100

By geographical region

Hong Kong 294 94 341 93
Mainland China 20 6 25 7
Total 314 100 366 100

RERES

S 25 8 25 7
peqid 289 92 341 93
@it 314 100 366 100
BERARES

OFEIMNT % 31 149 4
31-405% 129 41 137 37
4507 60 19 53 15
S51HIMN L 29 9 27 7
@5t 314 100 366 100
RERERES

BHHEH 12 4 15 4
2B 302 96 351 %6
@it 314 100 366 100
EHEED

9 204 94 341 93
HE R 20 6 25 7
@it 314 100 366 100
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

Below is a detailed breakdown of our employee turnover rate by
gender, age group and geographical region during the reporting

HEEEE)

BERLEITEEE)

E% (&)

PSR ERRAIR MR - FEERI R BB S MR
SR AREMPANT -

period:

2023 2022 2023F 2022%F
Turnover rate by gender BI85 B K =R
Male 18% 50% B 18% 50%
Female 67% 29% pegis 67% 29%
Turnover rate by age group BRERARE D HRAE
30 or below 61% 37% 30BRs A 61% 37%
31-40 79% 27% 31-40 5% 79% 27%
41-50 47% 15% 41-50 5% 47% 15%
51 or above 41% 44% 513k A £ 41% 44%
Turnover rate by geographical region RibEE DR AER
Hong Kong 63% 30% BH 63% 30%

There were total 186 employees (2022: 104 employees) left the
Group during the reporting period.

Health and Safety

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environmental Health and Safety Policy”,
no job is so important and no service so urgent, that we cannot take
time to perform our work safely, and in an environmentally
conscientious manner. The Group strives to provide staff with a safe
and healthy work environment and develop a safety awareness
among employees and others engaged in work, so that accidents
(personal injuries and property damage) and occupational illnesses
will be reduced to a minimum. In order to raise employees’ awareness
in maintaining health and safety issues, the Group offers safety
training programs and hazards measurement programs. Besides,
safety equipment is provided to the employees. Also, it is the
responsibility for the Group to identify and control safety, public
health, and environmental hazards associated with their operations
and work constructively with government agencies and others to
develop and implement laws, regulations, and standards to protect
public health, safety, and the environment.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Health and Safety (Continued)

During the reporting period, the Group was in strict compliance with
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and during each of the
past three years including the reporting period, no material work-
related fatalities and lost days due to work injury was recorded.

Development and Training

The Group believes that providing training to our staff is also an
important factor in attracting and retaining employees. The Group
aims to facilitate personal and professional development enabling
individuals and groups to achieve their full potential at work according
to the Group’s “Staff Training and Development Policy”.

The Group is committed to provide professional trainings to our
trained therapists in order to provide quality services to our clients.
QOur trainings included both theoretical and practical trainings and our
training program has been specifically formulated by our doctors and
training manager. We provide on the job training to strengthen the
quality of our trainings offered to our staff. We are of the view that the
ability to keep abreast of the latest trend in medical aesthetic services
and to offer quality service will impact our client traffic, revenue
growth and financial performance.

From time to time, our doctors attend industry conferences, seminars
and workshops in Hong Kong and overseas as well as seminars
organised by our suppliers on topics such as injection procedures
and energy-based procedures.

We require our newly recruited therapists to undergo a six-month
training programme provided by us prior to performing treatments as
agreed by the doctors for our clients.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Development and Training (Continued)

In recognition of our achievement in manpower training and
development and in fostering an organisational culture conducive to
life-long learning, we were awarded under the ERB Manpower
Developer Award Scheme and Caring Company Logo during the
reporting period.

Below is a detailed breakdown of the percentage of employees
trained by gender and employment category during the reporting

HEEEE)

BEREITEER(E)

BRRE ()
BEERIEATEIRERFEOR - U
RAREBFINE S BB HHE L - RBEH
RS - BRFIEERB AA B It 8IS
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K& R IR REFERLE DX IIER
B LA T

period:
2023 2022 2023 & 2022

Trained employee TR 5=

by gender ==
Female 100% 100% pegis 100% 100%
Trained employee by RERBRERESN

employment category ZilEE
Normal 100% 100% —R& 100% 100%
Middle 95% 33% FRAR 95% 33%
Senior 18% 29% =R 18% 29%

62  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2023



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HERERRE

7B 55

Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Development and Training (Continued)

The average training hours for employees by gender and employment

MHEEEE)

EERLEITERE)

BEREY(E)
mw¢@ﬁﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ%@ﬂ%ﬁm@§$w

category during the reporting period as follows: ZIREAT -

2023 2022 2023 2022 F
The average training hours for Hours per Hours per EMEREISHNEET EBEEE SRES
employees by gender employee employee 2| B =324 i34
Female 166.54 225.01 e 166.54 225.01
The average training hours for REBERESHN
employees by employment EEFHZI
category BB
Normal 179.42 245.61 —f5 179.42 245.61
Middle 3.58 0.71 Rk 3.58 0.71
Senior 0.55 0.36 = 0.55 0.36
Labour Standards g 3|

According to “No Child Labour Policy”, the Group does not employ
any person below the age of eighteen years at the workplace and
prohibits the use of child labour and forced or compulsory labour at
all its units. No employee is made to work against his/her will or work
as bonded/forced labour, or subject to corporal punishment or
coercion of any type related to work. Employment contracts and
other records, documenting all relevant details of the employees,
including age, are maintained at all units and are open to verification
by any authorised personnel or relevant statutory body. The unit
provides an annual report to the functional head on any incidents of
child or forced labour. Periodic assessment is conducted. The human
resources department undertakes random checks of records
annually.

During the reporting period, the Group complied with the Employment
Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong and did not
violated any relevant labour laws and regulations including child and
forced labour laws and regulations.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established “Procurement Policy and Guide to
Procedures” which aims to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations and appropriate social practices governing our
businesses, provide suppliers with equal opportunities for transactions
with the Group; and promote procurement activities based on mutual
understanding and trust. In order to manage the environmental or
social risks in the supply chain, we have strengthen the control in
procurement of treatment devices/consumables and skin care
products as below.

Treatment devices/treatment consumables

We place great emphasis on ensuring that treatment devices to be
introduced for use in our medical aesthetic centres are reliable and
capable of delivering desired results for our clients. To this end, we
have established policies and procedures to evaluate and assess
treatment devices. Our marketing and business development
department is primarily responsible for keeping abreast of the latest
technologies and conducting market research on the latest and
prevailing treatment technologies and skin care products. Periodic
meetings are held among our management, doctors and marketing
and business development department to discuss the latest
technologies and skin care products, during which our marketing and
business development department may recommend the types of
treatment devices to procure. From time to time, suppliers of
treatment devices visit us and demonstrate their treatment devices to
us, which may also provide us with a trial period during which we can
evaluate and assess the use and effectiveness of the treatment
devices.

When deciding whether to procure a new treatment device, we take
into account factors such as (i) whether it is approved by national
government agencies such as the Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) and/or whether such devices bear CE mark(s); (i) whether there
are similar devices on the market; (i) whether it is complementary to
our existing treatment offerings; (iv) whether it is accredited with
certification and qualification related to environmental protection; and
(v) our internal test results. The approval of our chief executive officer
and doctors must be obtained before we procure a new treatment
device.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Skin care products

The skin care products offered by us are supplied by manufacturers,
all of which are Independent Third Parties. The countries of origin of
our skin care products include Switzerland and France. We select
and source skin care products carefully based on factors such as the
suppliers’ background, credentials and reputation, product quality
and cost. The approval of our chief executive officer and laboratory
technician must be obtained before we take in any new product for
sale.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to offering an excellent customer experience
and ensuring that our products and services are safe and high quality.
We adhere to applicable laws regulating health and safety standards,
as well as those governing testing, advertising and labeling. The
Group was in strict compliance with related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to Trade Description Ordinance, Consumer
Goods Safety Ordinance and Consumer Goods Safety Regulation
during the reporting period. Our aim is for our customers to have
confidence in our products and services, and sufficient information to
make informed choices. Therefore, the Group has a set of policies
and procedures to oversee and manage issues related to
responsibilities of our products and services.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Quality Assurance

Providing quality non-surgical medical aesthetic services is one of our
management priorities. We have adopted comprehensive and
stringent quality assurance and control measures throughout our
business processes that covers, among others, the following aspects:

Recruitment of professional staff

In selecting new doctors and therapists to join us, we assess, among
others, their academic and professional qualifications, years of
relevant experience as well as their character and integrity.

Performance of consultation and treatments

The carrying out of consultation services that involve the practice of
medicine, medical diagnosis, prescription of pharmaceutical products
and medicines (each as defined under the Pharmacy and Poisons
Ordinance (Chapter 138 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) and certain
types of treatments (such as injection of botulinum toxin type A and
dermal fillers) constitute the practice of medicine and therefore must
be carried out by registered medical practitioners pursuant to the
Medical Registration Ordinance (Chapter 151 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Our doctors carry out consultation services and such certain
treatment procedures which are specified under the relevant laws and
regulations as well as selective treatment procedures perceived by
our doctors as being high risk, whereas our trained therapists perform
other selective treatment procedures as directed by our doctors.
Based on our doctors’ professional experience and judgment on the
risk of severe complication, selective energy-based procedures are
performed by doctors only if there is potential risk of irreversible organ
or tissue damage including nerve injury, muscle burn, fat necrosis or
skin necrosis.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Quality Assurance (Continued)

Standard operation procedures and clear division of labour

We implemented standard operation procedures at our medical
aesthetic centres and a clear division of labour to improve operational
and administrative efficiency and enhance the quality of our services.
Our doctors (assisted by medical assistants) and trained therapists
are mainly responsible for performing treatments while our aesthetic
service specialists are mainly responsible for sales and promotion. To
monitor our client’s satisfaction towards the treatment received, we
contact the client within several days after the treatment by phone or
text message to gather his/her feedback. We maintain a log book on
feedback for management review. Such internal structure and well
defined responsibilities are established for the purpose of segregating
the powers of operations, sales and client service to achieve effective
check and balance.

Intellectual Property Rights

We operate our business under the brand name “CosMax+”, “VITAE”
and “XOVE”, which we believe embodies our established reputation
for quality services and products. We believe that our intellectual
property rights are critical to our continued success. We primarily rely
on laws and regulations on trademarks and trade secrets and our
employees’ and third parties’ contractual commitments to
confidentiality to protect our intellectual property rights.

The Group’s research and development department is the
department responsible for the work related to intellectual property
rights, responsible for the acquisition, modification, renewal, licensing,
pledge, transfer, logout, and monitoring of intellectual property of all
units including trademarks, functional variable names, copyrights,
patents, responsible for guiding, supervising, and managing the
intellectual property rights maintenance and rights protection and
anti-counterfeiting of all units. The Group regularly conducts
intellectual property rights business training for relevant staff of various
units to enhance employees’ awareness of intellectual property rights
protection. The research and development department conducts
random inspections on the management of intellectual property rights
of various units from time to time.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Intellectual Property Rights (Continued)

Besides, the Group also requires our staff to endeavor to guarantee
and develop intellectual property rights of the Group while totally
respect legal intellectual property rights of third parties. In addition,
the Group would also sign confidentiality agreement and competition
prohibition agreement with its staff and suppliers to prevent the
infringement of intellectual property rights. Employees who are
suspected of violating relevant rules of intellectual property rights of
the Group shall be under investigation and the Group would take
appropriate actions to this.

Customer Data Information Protection

The Group upholds a belief that information security and privacy is
the key principle for operation. We comply with Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance. According to the Group’s Staff Handbook,
employee is required protect all the customers’ information.
Information only can be used in authorized business activities. If
employee disclose those information to other parties, it is considered
as data theft. The related employee’s employment will be terminated
and report to police for prosecution.

During the year, there was no products sold/service provided subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons and no material complaints
about our products and services received.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Anti-Corruption

In the Group’s “Staff Handbook”, one of the most important rules that
the Group requires all members of staff to observe is that they must
maintain honesty, refuse corruption, refuse to accept kickbacks, and
they must not misappropriate the Group’s funds and properties, must
not abuse power for own interests, and that all gifts received must be
handed to the Group.

The Group shall strive to protect and uphold Group’s and our own
reputation, professionalism and integrity. To this end, we shall avoid
obligations to customers or business associates resulting from
advantages, gifts or entertainment received in or due to our official
capacity which could compromise our position in any way or be
perceived by a third party to potentially compromise ourselves or the
Group. When we participate in any social or academic activities,
either in a personal or official capacity, we shall avoid any unbecoming
acts which will bring us or the Group into disrepute.

Employees could whistle-blow to the supervisor for the suspected
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering issues by email.
Information of the whistleblower is confidential. Once discovered and
confirmed, related personnel will be published or his/her employment
will be terminated. The Group will be report to Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) or other institution depends
on the cases. Besides, anti-corruption training were provided to
senior management through internal training during the reporting
period.

The Group was in strict compliance with Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance and there was no any legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees during reporting
period.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Community

Community Investment

As a socially responsible company, the Group is committed to
understanding the needs of the communities in which we operate.
The Group has adopted “Community Investment Policy”, it aims to
establish a comprehensive system to oversee the activities related to
community investment. The Group strives to develop long-term
relationship with our stakeholders and seek to make contributions to

programmes that have a positive impact on community development.

The Group made charitable and other donations amounting to
HK$129,000 during the reporting period (2022: HK$29,000). Besides,
the Group had also contributed to the sustainable development of the
community by serving with care and concern for the underprivileged
through the activities during the reporting period as follows:

° Joining Dress Pink Day and made donation to the Hong Kong
Cancer Fund
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o Promoting limited pink edition of XOVE product for donation to HWEXOVEMAEEERER © MEBE
the Hong Kong Cancer Fund EESERH
° Joining the charity walk and made donation to the Hong Kong 2NEEFLTTIREEEESEHEE
Federation of Handicapped Youth =
The following is resources contributed for the above mentioned LA R A& EIE A i EEFAIEHE &R
activities during the reporting period as follows:
2023 2022 2023 & 2022
Total amount of donation HKD 129,000 29,000 BReE T 129,000 29,000
Total number of hours for hour 816 501 IRMEERERSE 816 501
providing voluntary EoEGHSE
services
Total number of staff person 491 364 SR NN 491 364
involved for providing ERERFH
voluntary services BT 1%
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide

EBHA XS ARA AINER -

e REamEES

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHE - -EFEH —REERBRERES E=4:1]
A.  Environmental
RIS
Aspect A1: Emissions
BHEAT: HER)
General Disclosure Emissions
—Re R HER
KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
FRERIEER  BEMEE KA BB - HER
Al.1
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas Emissions
emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity.
FRENIER EHEEE1) REREZ(EE2)AETRBENNER(WER)BE - BE)
Al1.2
KPI' A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. The Group generated no

MRERESR ARERBAFHREN WER)TE -
A1.3

significant hazardous waste

during the reporting period.

REBMP RS AL EAESL
BEREEREED -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. Recycled paper disposed at

RRENIESR MELEREERERVEER (WER)TE -

landfills — Use of Resources
ZENHIERAIRRA

Al.4 — BRER
KPI' A1.5 Description of emission targets set and steps taken to achieve them. Use of Resources
BRETUER HOET VBN EEERAEIEL B EMEIMA LR o BiR A

A1.5
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CHERER
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BEEHAER
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Guide (Continued)

S ER A RHIRE -
wEES| (@)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHE - -EFEH —REERBERERES E=4:0]
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, Emissions
and a description of reduction targets set and steps taken to achieve
them.
MRERIER HHEEEEREZEEMNGE  REMPTEIZHRRE B SRR RE BER)
A1.6 F 5L B IRPTEREREY 2P 5R, o
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BT A2 : BR{EA
General Disclosure Use of Resources
—MRIKER EiR{EE A
KPI A2.1 Direct and indirect energy consumption by type in total. Use of Resources
FRERIEER RELNISNEERBAZERRERES - EiR{EE A
A2.1
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Use of Resources
BRBEUIER BRKERTBE - EREA
A2.2
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency and a description of targets set and Use of Resources
steps taken to achieve them.
BB IETR  RLBLIR(E A e M PR RT A2 80 B IR R RE BSE Lk B AR PR RN 2 EiR{EE A
A2.3 5 o
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for Use of Resources

RS UIETR
A2.4

KPI A2.5

RARERIER
A2.5

purpose, water efficiency and a description of targets set and steps
taken to achieve them.

F U SKERGE AR 7KR AT B R R - F7kREs Ko
RIEDE L B IR RA R -

AFTRTALED B AR K&

Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced.

HRmABEEMHNEENR (WER) BEESBMULE -
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (Continued)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHER - -EFEH —REERBEARERES E=4:0]
Aspect A3: The Environmental and Natural Resources
[ETE A3 : RERRAER
General Disclosure The Environmental and
Natural Resources
—MRIREE RIERRRER
KPI AB.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment Emissions & Use of
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them. Resources
FRERIER HHERIDHHRERRABERNEAZERERKRNEEE@LEDN HER K &R
A3.1 178 o
Aspect A4: Climate Change
EAS : RIxEL
General Disclosure Climate Change
—MRIKER RIREL
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have Climate Change
impacted, and those which may impact the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.
FRENIER HADERAESEHETAEATENEARBGIEBEE - REHRR RIERE
A4 EREETENTH -
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s ERBE R
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting HEhER

Guide (Continued)

ZPAERARIIERE -

WwEIES| (8)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section

TEHE - -EFEH —REERBERERES E=4:0]

B.  Social

e

Employment and Labour Practices

EBRERBIER

Aspect B1: Employment

EB1 : B
General Disclosure Employment
— MR 1B 1%

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and Employment
geographical region.

MRERIEER  1RIER - EERE  FRANERISNIESER - (=

B1.1

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Employment

BREBUER  RIER - FRARI KRB S HEERKLE =2

B1.2

Aspect B2: Health and safety

AEB2 : fEREZT S
General Disclosure Health and safety
— R EE fERREZ 2

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past Health and safety
three years including the reporting year.

BRGENIER RBT=ZEFE(BERSFRE)SFEEATIFARMIETHABR fERRERZ 2

B2.1 LK o

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and safety

FRERIEER BEIBEXANIERS - EEET S

B2.2

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how Health and safety
they are implemented and monitored.

FRERIEER WP RELT 21 - ARBBERITRERFE - RREEZ S

B2.3
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section

TEHER - -EFEH —REERBEARERES E=4:0]

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EMEBS : B a5
General Disclosure Development and Training
—RRHE R R

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employee trained by gender and employee category.  Development and Training

FRERIER RUEREBEESNZIEEBTDL R R

B3.1

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and Development and Training
employee category.

FRERIER KRUERIREEERE D  BRES KX THRE - ELEYSe=El

B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

E B4 : BT A
General Disclosure Labour Standards
— BB 45 T s

KPIB 4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child Labour Standards
and forced labour.

BRBENIER MR BB EE AR RE T KRGS T - 5 T AR

B 4.1

KPIB 4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Labour Standards

FRASUER IR ERIE R ER A BB TR 5 - 25 TAE8

B4.2
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs

IREE -BFH - —REBERBEENER

Section
=4

Operating Practices

EEEY
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
EB5 : HrEgE R
General Disclosure Supply Chain Management
— R EE HrEgEE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by region. In light of our result of
materiality assessment, such
KPIs is considered as not
material and thus not
disclosed.
BRGEIIER RS HHEEREE - ENBPIN B ML
B5.1 R ZEAREBIRFEER
RTIEZ  FAREE -
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging supplies, number of Supply Chain Management
supplies where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.
MRERUER WO BHEAHERNEN  RERTERBMNEEREE - UKk HregEE R
B5.2 HERITRERTTE -
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks ~ Supply Chain Management
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
BRGENIER HAEERRIEEESERGRE R ERRNED - ARIBER HrEgEEe
B5.3 TRERTE-
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable Supply Chain Management
products and services when selecting suppliers, how they are
implemented and monitored.
BRGENIER HOAEBEHERRREZARRERLRENED - ARIEBEART HrEgEEe
B5.4 NERTE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHE  EBEEH- - —REBERBREENER =8
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
A B6 : EmAaf
General Disclosure Product Responsibility
—RRHE Emaf
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety Product Responsibility

RAREIEIR
B6.1

KPI B6.2

RS RIS
B6.2

KPI B6.3

RASRAE AR AR

B6.3

KPI B6.4

RARERIER
B6.4

KPI B6.5

RASR AR IR AR
B6.5

and health reasons.

EEXCEZXERAHTRAR2BEREHMARDENEDL -

Number of products and service related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.
R E on MR TS VIR AR 8 B A MBS 5 0% -

Description and practices relating to observing and protecting

intellectual property rights.

T B v L ARIE F R EHE R RAROIE ) -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures .

s S B2 M EmEIEFF -

Description of customer data protection and privacy policies, how they
are implemented and monitored.

W E B E ERMRERALRBOR - U RBETRERTE -

Emaff —

it

EmAl

Product Responsibility

EmEE

Product Responsibility
— Intellectual Property
Rights
EmAE — MHBER

Product Responsibility
— Quality Assurance
EmAE - BERTE

Product Responsibility
— Customer Data
Information Protection

RIZ
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Guide (Continued)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHE - -EFEH —REERBERERES E=4:0]
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[EmH BT : RES
General Disclosure Anti-corruption
—MRIKER R&A
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought Anti-corruption

against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the case.

FARRERIER %i&iﬁﬂW%T%éﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁé}ﬁﬂﬂﬁa%m BT RARMEE MR R&3F

B7.1 A

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, Anti-corruption
how they are implemented and monitored.

BRERIER P S R RIRT - ARMERERITRER X - k&S

B7.2

KPIB7.2 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. Anti-corruption

FRGEIER fMomEEREIRHORESE - R&ES

B7.2
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RS - HERERBRE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s BEEBMERZMBRARIAIRE -
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting e kERHREES (&)

Guide (Continued)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section

TEHER - -EFEH —REERBEARERES E=4:0]

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[ETHBS : HERRE
General Disclosure Community Investment
—MRIKER HERE

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, Community Investment
labour needs, health, culture, sport).

BRGENIER ZIERESE(WHE REFHE HIHTK - @R - 8F)- HERKRE

B8.1

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Community Investment

MRERIER CHISHBMSHAER (NS ENERHE) - HRKE

B8.2
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 6 July 2016 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the provision of
medical aesthetic services and sale of skin care products.

Business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the Group’s business and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 7 to 18 of
this annual report which forms part of this report of the directors.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s business. The following
are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.

Government Policies Risk

Following certain adverse incidents in relation to the beauty service
industry in recent years, the Hong Kong Government has been
reviewing the existing legal framework and considering tightening its
supervision over the beauty service industry by promulgating certain
laws and regulations to regulate, among other things, the types of
medical aesthetic procedures that should be performed by registered
medical practitioners. See “Regulatory Overview — Recent
Development in relation to Regulation of Medical Procedures and
Beauty Services, as well as Private Healthcare Facilities” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 30 December 2016 for further
details.
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There is no assurance that the Hong Kong Government will not
impose more stringent laws, rules, regulations or industry standards
in connection with the provision of medical aesthetic services. Any
change in the regulatory framework may render it more restrictive for
us to conduct our business. There is also no assurance that we will
be able to adapt to such changes in a timely manner. In addition,
compliance with such new laws, rules, regulations or industry
standards may significantly increase our operating costs, which may
in turn lower our profit margins. Any of the above-mentioned
circumstances may materially and adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Risk of Adverse Economic, Social or Political Conditions
Our business operations are mainly based in and we derive most of
our revenue from Hong Kong. Our business operations and the
demand for our medical aesthetic services and the sale of skin care
products are therefore subject to the economic, social and political
conditions in Hong Kong. Furthermore, any incidence of social unrest,
strike, riot, civil disturbance or disobedience in Hong Kong may cause
inconvenience to clients who wish to visit our medical aesthetic
centres and weaken their desire or willingness to undergo medical
aesthetic treatments. Any of the above circumstances may have a
material and adverse impact on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

In addition, in the past years, a portion of our revenue was derived
from visitors and tourists from the PRC who do not reside in Hong
Kong. Any reduction in the spending willingness of such PRC visitors
and tourists and any decrease in the number of PRC visitors and
tourists to Hong Kong as a result of anti-mainland sentiment may
significantly reduce our revenue derived from such clients, which
could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and
believes business development and environment affairs are highly
related. The Group has implemented certain environmental protection
measures to save energy and reduce the consumption of resources.
These policies were supported by our staff and were implemented
effectively.

In addition, details regarding the Group’s environmental policies and
performance can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 45 to 79 of this annual report.
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Compliance with the Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations. During the year ended 31 March 2023 and up
to the date of this report, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. There was no material
breach or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the
date of this report.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that staff, customers and suppliers are
the key to our sustainable and stable development. We are
committed to establishing a close relationship with our staff,
enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing high-quality
services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable
development.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
101 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend or declare the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be held on
Friday, 15 September 2023. A notice convening the meeting will be
issued and sent to the Shareholders in due course.

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 11
September 2023 to Friday, 15 September 2023 both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares can be registered. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 8 September 2023.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 184. The summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2023, in the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of
the Company available for distribution to shareholders under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to HK$59,927,000
(2022: HK$59,207,000).

Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$129,000 (2022: HK$29,000).

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 March 2023, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the sole shareholder
of the Company by way of written resolutions passed on 19 December
2016 for a term of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 March 2023.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save for the Share Options Scheme, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
(“Mrs. Gigi Ma”)

Mr. HO Tsz Leung Lincoln

Dr. LAM Ping Yan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr. LI Wai Kwan

By virtue of article 84 of the articles of association of the Company,
Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi and Dr. LAM Ping Yan will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and will being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs pursuant to the Listing Rules. As at the date
of this report, the Board considers them to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of 3 years and continuing thereafter until
terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’ notice
in writing to the other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of 3 years, provided that either the Company or
the INEDs may terminate such appointment at any time by giving at
least three months’ notice in writing to the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Emolument Policy

We have established the Remuneration Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters,
including benefits in kind and other compensation payable to the
Directors and senior management, after consultation with the
chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer.

Under the remuneration policy of the Company, the Remuneration
Committee will consider factors such as corporate and individual
performance, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

Other than operating a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the Group has not
operated any other retirement benefit schemes for its employees.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions made by the Group
amounted to HK$6,595,000 (2022: HK$4,705,000) for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged appropriate liabilities insurance to
indemnify the Directors from any liabilities and costs arising from the
business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every director of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company maintains directors and officers
liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for any legal action
brought against its Directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

Biographical Details of Directors
Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 19 to 26 of
the annual report.
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Competing Interests

As at 31 March 2023, so far as the Directors are aware, none of the
Directors, the controlling shareholders and substantial shareholders,
neither themselves nor their respective associates (as defined under
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules) had held any position or had interest in
any businesses or companies that were or might be directly or
indirectly competing with the business of the Group, or gave rise to
any concern regarding conflict of interest.

Disclosure of Interests

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated
Corporation

As at 31 March 2023, interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required (i) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange; or
(i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follow:

a. Long positions in shares of the Company:
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a. REQRRDGHFE:

Percentage of

the Company’s
Number of issued
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest shares held share capital
ARATBE BT
EEHA B g sl M & A BANE DL
Mrs. Gigi Ma Interest of a controlled 275,000,000 68.75%
corporation (Note 1)
BRI A2+ =A@ s (FHFE1)
Note: BiRE -
1. Such 275,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright 1. 5% 275,000,000 M A% {7 LA e 242 iR B TR A 7

Group Holdings Limited (“Sunny Bright”), a company beneficially owned as
to 50% by Mrs. Gigi Ma and 50% by Mr. Ma Ting Keung, Patrick (“Mr.
Patrick Ma”). Mr. Patrick Ma is the spouse of Mrs. Gigi Ma. Therefore, Mrs.
Gigi Ma is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Sunny Bright
under the SFO.
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b. Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

b. RAEBEEROHNFE

Percentage of

the Company’s
Name of associated Capacity/nature of Number of issued
Name of Director corporation interest shares held share capital
AKAR BT
EEHE AR L B = B nttE FEROEE RANEIE
Mrs. Gigi Ma Sunny Bright Beneficial owner and 2 100%
interest of spouse
BRI+ e EnlEE AR BER

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the legal and beneficial owner of 1 issued ordinary
share of Sunny Bright, representing 50% of the issued share capital
of Sunny Bright. Mr. Patrick Ma is the legal and beneficial owner of
the other 1 issued ordinary share of Sunny Bright, representing the
remaining 50% of the issued share capital of Sunny Bright. As Mr.
Patrick Ma is the spouse of Mrs. Gigi Ma, Mrs. Gigi Ma is deemed to
be interested in all the interest registered in Mr. Patrick Ma’s name in
Sunny Bright. Accordingly, together with the 50% shareholding
interest in Sunny Bright registered in Mrs. Gigi Ma’s name, Mrs. Gigi
Ma is taken to be interested in 100% of the issued share capital of
Sunny Bright.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the Directors
nor chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange; or (i)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of

the Company

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the person
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) or
company which were required to be recorded in the register required

to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follow:

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 March 2023, other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company, the following
persons/entities have an interest or a short position in the shares or
the underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or required to be recorded in the register of the Company

required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company:

T ERRR AR E R MAERER D
2R R TORR

MR2028F3A31H * THAL(RRAREER
FEBITHABRIN KA REABRIEES &
HEIENE 386 IFEREATE 2 Bt asE
wRRBRWT

MEBEE - R20283F3A31H  BRARA
EEREBITHABN  TIAL BERA
DA SAR R RR (0 P HE B B IR IR 5 K B
EIEFIEXVERE 2 R 3D Em AR A H T A
RIEES RSG5 336 K EBATFEZ
Rpa) B frgEzE=AR

RAERTRGEE :

Percentage of
Number of the Company’s

shares held/ issued

Name Capacity/Nature of interest interested share capital
=Y To] AATREEIT
wE S EB B1ip RmtE ERNBRHEE RAENE DL
Sunny Bright Beneficial Owner 275,000,000 68.75%
HF EnEBA
Mr. Patrick Ma Interest in a controlled corporation 275,000,000 68.75%
and interest of spouse (Note 1)

HiEoakE VRS A E s M R (M RE)
Meitu, Inc. Beneficial Owner 20,000,000 5%
EJENS EnEEA
Note: B5E -
1. Such 275,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright, a company 1. % 275,000,000 A% A& 179 A SE 3 (— 8 i1 5 2R AN 22 =

beneficially owned as to 50% by Mrs. Gigi Ma and 50% by Mr. Patrick Ma. Mrs.
Gigi Ma is the spouse of Mr. Patrick Ma. Accordingly, Mr. Patrick Ma is deemed
to be interested in all the Shares held by Sunny Bright under the SFO.

N B 5E58 S 5 B B 21 A 50% K 50% M s H) A A )
HEBRL - BRIMLLRBFEREENIESE -
It RBES RG] - FiEREERE/NK
ERAENEHROhEE R -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023 and so far as known
to the Directors, no person, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or
any Associated Corporation” above, had notified the Company of an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the percentage of revenue
derived from our five largest clients in aggregate was 4.1% (2022:
1.6%) of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, purchases from our largest
supplier accounted for approximately 11.7% (2022: 15.9%) of the
Group’s total purchases. For the year ended 31 March 2023, our five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 41.2%
(2022: 39.1%) of the Group’s total purchases.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major suppliers or customers.
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Connected Transactions

The “related party transactions” as disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
do not constitute a connected transaction or a continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

There were no other non-exempt connected and continuing
connected transactions during the reporting period.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information available to the Company and the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float required by
the Listing Rules in the reporting period.

Compliance of Non-Competition Undertaking

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 December
2016, pursuant to the non-competition undertakings set out in the
deed of non-competition dated 19 December 2016, each of our
controlling shareholders, namely, Sunny Bright Group Holdings
Limited, Mrs. Gigi Ma and Mr. Patrick Ma (collectively the “Controlling
Shareholders”), have undertaken to the Company (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) that, amongst other things, each of them
does not or will not, and will procure each of their respective close
associates not to, directly or indirectly, carry on, participate in, be
engaged, interested directly or indirectly, either for their own account
or in conjunction with or on behalf of or for any other person in any
business in competition with or similar to or is likely to be in
competition with the business of the Group upon the Listing of the
Company. Details of the deed of non-competition are set out in the
paragraph headed “Non-Competition Deed” in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the prospectus of the
Company dated 30 December 2016.

The INEDs have reviewed the implementation of the deed of non-
competition and are of the view that the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with their undertakings given under the deed of non-
competition for the year ended 31 March 2023.

FERS

HZE2023F3 A3 HIEFEMNGE P BME
P2 AT TmM [FES RS ) WA L™
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Equity-Linked Agreements
Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
27 1o 44 of the annual report.

Events after the Reporting Period

There was no significant event occurred after the reporting period.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Ernst & Young
as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
LAl Ka Yee Gigi

Chairlady

Hong Kong, 26 June 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Miricor
Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 101 to 1883, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

FHENMEREERRATAZERR
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=
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

BEENSEE

AR EIE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REEEEH TR AL

Revenue recognition from prepaid packages

Revenue from treatment services is recognised when such
services have been rendered to customers.

Prepaid treatment services not yet rendered, which are
non-refundable, are deferred and reported as contract
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Customers may not exercise all of their contractual rights
of the prepaid packages before expiry of the service
period, and such unexercised rights are referred to as
breakage.

The Group recognised an expected breakage amount as
revenue in proportion to the expected pattern of rights
exercised by the customers. Upon expiry of the service
period, the unutilised portion of the prepaid packages is
fully recognised in profit or loss. As at 31 March 2023, the
carrying amount of contract liabilities amounted to
HK$144,192,000. During the year ended 31 March 2023,
revenue recognised from treatment services amounted to
HK$333,213,000.

The recognition of revenue from the prepaid packages
involves significant management’s judgement to determine
the appropriate amount and timing based on the Group’s
accounting policy for revenue recognition. The
determination of the expected breakage amount involves
significant estimates based on the Group’s historical
experience on the utilisation of prepaid packages and the
expected utilisation pattern, as appropriate.

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, 5 and
22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures included:

° obtaining an understanding of the Group’s revenue
recognition policy in relation to prepaid packages;

° assessing the estimates used in the determination of
expected breakage amount such as historical
experience on the utilisation of prepaid packages by
examining the related usage records and comparing
to the actual usage records on a sampling basis;
and

° testing the internal controls and checking the
calculation of the amount of revenue recognised
during the reporting period and the amount of
contract liabilities as at the end of the reporting
period by examining the underlying sales contracts
and related records on a sampling basis.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

BEEEE

=T EE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Other Information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Tsz Tat.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

26 June 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEEsREMZEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023
B ZE 20234331 HIEFE

2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
P 5T FHET FHIT
REVENUE g 5 463,117 363,915
Other income and gain, net H WA R Wz F 58 5 9,445 1,314
Cost of inventories and consumables FEREREmAA (47,430) (29,038)
Staff costs BT (177,460) (125,341)
Property rentals and related expenses WEMS RABERY (69,959) (48,641)
Depreciation of property, VI~ BB R EREITE
plant and equipment (44,449) (24,797)
Other expenses, net H Y FEE (153,471) (103,184)
Finance costs BT TE A AR 6 (3,660) (3,027)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBADER(BB) 7 (283,867) 31,201
Income tax credit/(expense) FrigRige, (FAx) 10 3,366 (5,819
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEBRRN,(EH8) (20,501) 25,382
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hi 2@k (FE)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that  AHEHZHIEFIEEFT D ESE
may be reclassified to profit or loss in BmmAEMEE
subsequent periods: Wi (ER)
Exchange differences on translation of MHEGINETRHE H Z5E
foreign operations (56) 314
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EERENE S (F5E) 8
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (20,557) 25,696
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE AAREERERFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EESREF (&)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY
Basic and diluted AR NS 12 HK(5.13) cents  HK®6.35 cents

(5.13) 781l 6.35 781
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e RN R
As at 31 March 2023
R2023%F 3 A31H

2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Pt TExT FE&TT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE KRB 13 101,075 117,678
Right-of-use assets ERAREE 14(a) 109,304 129,898
Goodwill R 15 - 4,305
Deposits e 18 15,460 16,794
Deferred tax assets FIEFRIBE B 25 17,643 8,033
Total non-current assets IEREEERLE 243,482 276,708
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories Ve 16 38,194 37,969
Trade receivables B 5 BRI 17 18,077 2,237
Prepayments, deposits, TERRIE - e
other receivables and other assets Hih e BRI K Hfh & &= 18 34,013 31,259
Tax recoverable Al Y B R I8 3,720 485
Pledged time deposits [REEECTSE e 19 62,414 62,476
Cash and cash equivalents BeRESZEY 19 116,911 65,680
Total current assets MEEEBE 273,329 200,106
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables B S TR 20 10,544 7,829
Other payables and accruals Hip R L ETE 21 21,300 20,467
Contract liabilities and deferred revenue & %18 & MIEEYES 22 182,048 130,238
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHERITER 23 19,170 -
Lease liabilities MEaE 14(p) 44,467 37,997
Tax payable FERLIE 5,417 4,419
Provision for reinstatement costs {B1E AR BT 24 3,619 2,044
Total current liabilities MEN B AR 286,565 202,994
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES nBEEFE (13,236) (2,888)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERARBERE
LIABILITIES 230,246 273,820
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE MR AR R &
As at 31 March 2023
MR2023F 3 H31H

2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T T FHEIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kREBEE
Lease liabilities MEaE 14(b) 66,639 89,587
Provision for reinstatement costs B8R AN B 24 9,749 10,161
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEEE 25 3,145 2,802
Total non-current liabilities IEmB B ELE 79,533 102,550
Net assets BEEE 150,713 171,270
EQUITY S
Issued capital BT 26 4,000 4,000
Reserves #E 28 146,713 167,270
Total equity S ARE 150,713 171,270

Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi
Byimzt
Director

EE

Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln

MFR=EE
Director

EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBHR

For the year ended 31 March 2023

BHZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

Share  Exchange

Issued premium fluctuation Retained Total
capital account reserve profits equity
BRI R i:37) RE 5

EN wHEER  ORDRE A aE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TR TEL TAT

At 1 April 2021 B202154A1H 4,000 67,788 (4) 73,790 145,574
Profit for the year ERERA - - - 25,382 25,382
Other comprehensive income FEHEM2ENE

for the year:

Exchange differences on WEBINETBME L ZE

translation of foreign operations - - 314 - 314

Total comprehensive income FEEENGZESE

for the year - - 314 25,382 25,696
At 31 March 2022 and R2022FE3A3N AR

1 April 2022 20224 F1H 4,000 67,788 310 99,172 171,270
Loss for the year FEERE - - - (20,501) (20,501)
Other comprehensive loss FEEMEZARR:

for the year:

Exchange differences on BEBINEBE L ZE

translation of foreign operations - = (56) = (56)

Total comprehensive loss FEXABELR

for the year - - (56) (20,501) (20,557)
At 31 March 2023 R2023F3A31H 4,000 67,788* 254* 78,671* 150,713
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$146,713,000  * ZERBREPEEGEVBMRARZEEGRHE

(2022: HK$167,270,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 146,713,000/8 7T (2022 & : 167,270,000/ 7C) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= Ao~ —1
12 \éiﬁﬁ ﬁi‘%‘%
For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3 A31 HIEFE

2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5T FExT FH&TT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHIBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BREADER(BE) (23,867) 31,201
Adjustments for: MTHEFIEAE
Interest income FEWA 5 (2,354) (494)
Finance costs BT R AR 6 3,660 3,027
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENMREITE
equipment 7 44,449 24,797
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 7 46,098 34,991
Covid-19-related rent concessions REHAAEFTEIA
from lessors HENESRE 7 = (1,297)
Impairment of goodwill BERE 7 4,305 -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of B 5 ERETRE,
trade receivables, net ORERMD) ) F5E 7 561 (92)
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off of items & /iS4 - BE
of property, plant and equipment, net REEEEER
(Uzs) 58 7 (164) 3
Write-off of inventories MiEEE 7 2,094 -
74,782 92,136
Increase in inventories FEEmnm (2,319) (23,795)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables & 5 FEUBEZUR A~ (3&0) (16,581) 14,120
Increase in prepayments, deposits, TERFIE - e - Hi
other receivables and other assets FE U BRI N B4 & EE 1 N (1,342) (13,544)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BRI E SFEZOR D, ()
time deposits 62 (5,130)
Increase in trade payables Z S EMNBEDIE M 2,715 5,753
Increase in other payables HiER R M ERTE A
and accruals 0 876 13,845
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities & 48 & MIEE W =
and deferred revenue #hn, G ) 51,810 (37,944)
Decrease in provision for BER A ER L
reinstatement costs (50) (433)
Cash generated from operations IR EANIRS 109,953 45,008
Interest received B UELF B 971 477
Interest element of lease payments HMEFFHOF BB (3,333) (3,027)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid), net 3R [E /(2 1}) & E 1S5 F 58 (8,138) 1,571
Net cash flows from operating activities R4 EBFTSIR SR 2 %58 99,453 44,029
CASH FLOWS FROM REFHRERERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, HBEYE  BWEMREEEB
plant and equipment (24,174) (107,852)
Deposits paid for purchases of items EEWE  BEREREEED
of property, plant and equipment SRR (2,607) (3,786)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - BEMXREEE
property, plant and equipment FTiS k1R 242 -
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged time A BE AR R H H R E =18 A
deposits with original maturity of more KK IRTE OB
than three months when acquired (3&m) (11,301) 14,128
Net cash flows used in investing activities % & & AR SR8 F5E (37,840) (97,510)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= ho~—1
ii7 \éiﬁﬁ ﬁ%ﬂs—%
For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBAERERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings FIRTTER 29(b) 20,000 -
Repayment of bank borrowing BBIRITER 29(b) (830) -
Principal portion of lease payments MENFHAREE S 29(b) (40,772) (28,735)
Interest paid BEAFE (322) -
Net cash flows used in financing activites R & )EENFTHIR GRS /558 (21,924) (28,735)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH IR& R IR&Z B in,
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CR2) B8 39,689 (82,216)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning E##R & RELZEEY
of year 65,680 147,645
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, 4N & & & 8 1) g2 2 F %8
net 241 251
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S XHRERRLZEY
END OF YEAR 105,610 65,680
ANALYSIS OF BALANCESOF CASH H&RBEEZEYHEH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS oA
Cash and bank balances R MIRITEHER 64,499 65,680
Non-pledged time deposits with original 78 A B R F| 2 H
maturity of less than three months DR=EA K
when acquired I E R 41,111 -
Non-pledged time deposits with original 7 & AR E|Hf H
maturity of more than three months HBid=1E A K
when acquired EIFTEHFR 11,301 -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ERE I IEARK A
in the consolidated statement of REeEMREEEY
financial position 19 116,911 65,680
Non-pledged time deposits with original A8 AR R 2| H 5
maturity of more than three months HBiE=1E A
when acquired B E R (11,301) -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ERESREXRMIVBE SR
in the consolidated statement of ReEEY
cash flows 105,610 65,680
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

Corporate and Group Information

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 18/F, Nan Fung Tower,
88 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the
provision of medical aesthetic services and the sale of skincare
products.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
and the ultimate holding company of the Company is Sunny
Bright Group Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

NEIRAREEER
BYEREBRER AR A HRHESH
EAMERIMER AR - ARFHES
BEMEMREBRIRTHETSSIHE
BWRE18E ©

RAEE KRB REKEB AR (5HE
[AEE]) TERERHEEXETRBE R
EEEMBE -

E=ZRR ARAMEERERAF IR
BRI AR R AR RAR AR (—RER
RBELBEIMAIZOAT) -

MELE2ER
ARBEEBHBABZFHBWT

follows:
Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
ARREERER DI
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration registered
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
[=5:86)
KL BER EZER/
a8 EEWH HERA E& B TEER
Coresmax Group Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands (“‘BVI") HK$2 100 - Investment holding
HERIES 2T REER
(IEBEXES])
Miricor Beauty (BVI) Limited BvVI US$1 100 - Investment holding
HERTES 17T REER
G Max Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
services
0 1B REERRG
Miricor Beauty (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Sale of skincare products
EMER (FB)ERDA B 18T HEREEM
Miricor Cosmeceuticals People’s Republic HK$50,000,000 - 100 Wholesale of
(Guangzhou) Company Limited* of China (“PRC")/ skincare products
Mainland China
Miricor Cosmeceuticals EEAREM 50,000,000 7T - 100 ZEEEm#E
(Guangzhou) Company Limited (TrE ), /BN
Cos Max Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of medical
aesthetic services
0 1B REHEBEXTRG
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1. RRREEER (@)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARIZER (&)
Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
ARREERER DI
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration registered
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
[55:85)
MR BER EER/
A8 EEH AR Ef# B TEXR
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of medical
(Central) Limited aesthetic services
Eh 1B REBEX TR
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of medical
(CWB) Limited aesthetic services
e 1B REBEXTRE
CM Technology Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
services
07 1B REERRE
CMIP Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Owner of trademarks
HERRAF] EERTHES 17T BIREAA
Cos Max E-commerce Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Sale of skincare products
353 18T HEEEEM
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$300,000 - 100 Provision of medical
(TST) Limited aesthetic services
Bk 300,000/ 7T REBEXARHG
Surplus Power Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
services
Surplus Power Limited 0 18T - 100 REEERE
Vitae Wellness Beauty Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of health and
beauty services
307 1R REERED RS
Vitae Wellness Beauty (Central) Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 - 100  Provision of health and
beauty services
07 20,000 7T REEREARS
Vitae Wellness Beauty (TST) Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 - 100  Provision of health and
beauty services
307 20,000 7T RERREARS
XOVE HK Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Sale of skincare products
XOVE HK Limited B 1,000,000/7C - 100 HEEEEM

This subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under
PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.1 Basis of Preparation 2.1 RBLEAE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by HK$13,236,000. The net current liabilities
position was mainly due to the contract liabilities of
HK$144,192,000 classified under current liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period. Taking into account the stable operating
cash inflows to be generated from the provision of medical
aesthetic services and the sale of skincare products, the
directors of the Company consider the Group will have
adequate resources to meet its liabilities, commitments and
funding requirements as and when they fall due within one year
from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
these consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

HERBHERRDBEELEFMAE
([BEGFMAE])REM2EBTG
BELEQ ([FAPHREER]) (BEFE
BRAETEVBREER  TEGHE
AT &EEGHER ] kRE) - BERR
SR EEFBRRMED ZKERE M
MREL - L FH MR DIIRIBE £ AR
- BRABERIN HFEFHRERTD
WAET(TETD 25 MAAEIH
BEREN 2T -

R20283F3A31H  AEEMNRHER
7B H H 7 B) & B 13,236,00008 7T © B
BEFEMAIEHNBERARSER
MEBEBENE LA E 144,192,000 7T
Figh e ZREIBHEESXZARBRIFEE
EEEMBELEBTOLEHSRA -
ARAEERABAEBBETHWERIE
NEEREHAR—FRIHHERS -
FERESFR A AAAIEERE
W RBEREEEREZERENH
HwEBIRE -

mERE

TERE M HE BIE R E BE = 2023 F
SABLFEZHBHRE - HBEAF
FERAAREESREEEHNERE(B1E
BEER) EAEERE2EERES
i 72 AE A A 4 o] 3R 4 & [ B sk 5 A R B
BEHARRAEBENBBEUBRERW
AT EZEO® (AT ALEEER
BEFETHEENE G N CRKE
TER) B - RES TSI -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued) 21 RBEEAE (#)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

22 GETBRRKIEE
REEERAFE NI HRERNERIR
WA T EIEET BRI B RS -

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual EBMEREEN o EL S H
HKFRS 3 Framework EREACH]

Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment: iy | NE - BERRE : FIE
HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use F165 155 BEBZH 2R

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of ER et ERRIEAH) — BRI
HKAS 37 Fulfiling a Contract ERIH o]

Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, BB BREEL  BAUBREENEF
to HKFRSs llustrative Examples accompanying 2018FZ2020F  BEHTEIMELENHIN -
2018-2020 HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41 CERENE EATBREERE 165

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are

applicable to the Group are described below:

@)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
“Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments
also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to business combinations that
occurred on or after 1 April 2022. As there were no
business combinations during the year, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

REf 2 SRR R EE
SEHERIE 415K BT

AEEERNEETRERBRE LR
MEE R gen T

(@

BB HmELERE 35 2 EFT A
2018 6 A MM 2 AT R & HE2
HEZE ([HERMEZE D I8 B R LR 2
HWERE 25 HRRELLRES - W
U R TERNERNY
AIMAE RV BREENEIRA
HERERRFTIE —EGIIME SR - Bl —
FEEA2EMERUBTEEK
BEXBENTE - fIIMERE
B EBREB S EREI7R
AEBS(ERMBREREEZE
g)-REFIREEANEER
RARBEMS - WEBENEEM
FER—IHEBEHHAE - AIEA
BEREMBRELAEIR 2 ERE
DR ERBEFERIE 755
B (BRVBHRE2BEES) -
REEIE MEBMSEZR- It
Hh - RREBBETRE AARBELT
HAEMPRUEE A ERER - A5 H
ERZEEETEAR2022F 4 A1
A BBEEZEBEEH - HREF
W EEBE M BZE BT
R E 2 B AROR RR IR AR
FRISE o

c %EHE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of
those items as determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in
profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after 1 April 2021. Since
there was no sale of items produced prior to the property,
plant and equipment being available for use, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for
an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling
the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled
all its obligations at 1 April 2022 and no onerous contracts
were identified. Therefore, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

(Continued)

(d)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendment that is applicable to the Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid
or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group
has applied the amendment prospectively from 1
April 2022. As there was no modification or
exchange of the Group’s financial liabilities during
the year, the amendment did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 EEMERKRERINDEBTF

Financial Reporting Standards AR
AEERZEUNFRERIVEEBATE
BRI RAEBFE] RS E] BB
R .

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between BB RE %L REEHERBE] 7]
and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or FI0RRBLGHEN  ARELRZAH
Joint Venture® #08%: (20114 ) (53] BENERTE
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback? EEBIRE %R EAHEHES E?
F165154]
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' BRI BHREEL REAH)
FATH
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts"® BB RS %8 REEAHA S
E1THET
Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and BB REER BRERE NG
HKFRS 9 — Comparative Information® F1TRER] BWEERZE17RR
BRI BREES

9 — erEHe

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or EROHENFEITE AESEAETDY
Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”) 4 I ([2020F
EHEN
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilties with Covenants EECHERNEIRET WEEENFRIEE

(the “2022 Amendments”)?
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies'
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

(l2022 FE7TA])?
BRGHENE1RR BIBERE
BB REENER
EE2ET

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates' ERGHERNESRIE] S EIATES
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities BROHENE12%RBE] E-XFELHNEER

arising from a Single Transaction'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the
2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments
and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial
application of HKFRS 17
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 EEMERKRERDEBTF

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right
of use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e.,
1 April 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current, in particular the determination over
whether an entity has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022
Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which
an entity must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current. In
addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures
by an entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when it has a right to defer
settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply
simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments
and whether existing loan agreements may require revision.
Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 EEMERKRERNE BT

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality
to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is
non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is not
necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the accounting
policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

116 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2023

#&%EE\J (4)
BEAGHERNE1RIET BB RS
/\E\na‘%sﬁik ETEREHR -
FEHBASHECR - WEFTBIRER R
fi‘éi‘f'éﬁﬂ‘%%&iﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁl\iﬁﬂ*ﬁ%f&
CAEEEHReYE-RARVBER
%E@iﬂiﬁﬁ%ﬁdfﬁz%ﬂﬂ%#&%ﬁﬂj
FUATE - AIEERTBURERBERX -
BEREMBRMEEANEBRSES F25IEET
A EEM RS EAR ST BRE
RIBHIERFIMEIRS] - BB GFTERE
SRIERT 20234 1 A1 Hsk 2 & B H
FEMMER  UAHFREEA - EEEA
BEEMBREEAEBREFE 2RSS
FTiRft 2 ¥5 5| W FEa& 1 H&EZ’;‘;{%
WEES - AEBEBEESEHER DK
R URREZSEIRE 8-

BAGFEAZESHE JZ&%”;:HE#
”‘*E/\Eﬁﬂz“ﬂ*%zf‘ﬁﬂ’mﬁu
%ﬁm%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂiiqﬂﬁﬁﬁgﬂﬁm
MHEBSE RSB NESERBN
AR ERMRBABIR UG EES
fhar - ZEERTN2028F 1 A1 8%
BEBHFERSHMER  WEAR
ZEMRAIAR SR 2 BB EN TR
E&@Eﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ o UETIRAIIER - 18
HZ BT T H RSB HwEREK
Eﬁiﬁ?&%"



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 EEMERKRERDEBTF

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning
obligations. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHRERE

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiy  is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

24 TESHBEBRE @)

BES

HERALTRHERATMERFNEAEE 2

BT -

@ BEAALRTREALHES/TAEA
TZERARE

U

(i)

%

BASEHEAESEAH
IR

HAEBHEEERTE N
(4

RASESAEEET QAW
FTEEBAE

(b) ﬁﬁAiﬁﬁ AT AR 2 B

?u’”@

—
=

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

—&

1>3\\ |
m
i
p i
+t
O
JiE]
A
i
JeE

¥
> B
B
B
b
-
ar
=
|
H
[1]

& n§
)
S
>
e

- R
=R

it
EJIH
=
&

30 W
[ |11
N

i}

%aa
& >
94 1

[ B> R
o e mé
© A R

¥ =

T
>
ol

B
ﬁ

% % 5
= 3
?
o

= i)

< (a) BR AT it A L2
2

3%
w

PN
SH 'mg
-+

Hek

(i) ER Pt 2 A+ %
%ﬁiﬁ%%ﬂiﬁ
(HZEBELRFH
BAEB R

onp DUk

HNN

W8t mé}
TR BB R

i}

N o
%#»%

S EEER 2 EM
ﬂ’ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%
TkTEgEﬁA

m R

\
/

oo
3

2023 3 / SYPEBREBER DA

121



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHERE @)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Treatment devices 20%
Tools and equipment 25%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Computer equipment 20%
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHREBRE @)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a
lease component and non-lease components, the Group
adopts the practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components and to account for the lease component and the
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

@

(®)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Where applicable, the cost of a right-
of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

()

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option).
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

Lease payments on short-term leases are

the lease term.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHERE @)

(Continued)

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets at
amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHREBRE @)

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
recognised in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

2.4 TESEHBERBE (&)
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Revenue recognition W=
Revenue from contracts with customers BEEEHWE

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to be that
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

24 TESHHERBE @)

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(@ Provision of medical aesthetic services
Revenue from treatment services, medical consultation
services, prescription and dispensing of medical products
are recognised when the services have been rendered to
customers.

Prepaid treatment services not yet rendered, which are
non-refundable, are deferred and reported as contract
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Customers may not exercise all of their
contractual rights of the prepaid packages before expiry
of the service period, and such unexercised rights are
referred to as breakage. The Group recognised an
expected breakage amount as revenue in proportion to
the expected pattern of rights exercised by the
customers. Upon expiry of the service period, the
unutilised portion of the prepaid packages are fully
recognised in profit or loss.

(b)  Sale of skincare products
Revenue from the sale of skincare products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the skincare
products.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Contract costs

Costs incurred to obtain a contract with a customer are
capitalised as an asset if the costs are expected to be
recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit
or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

BEREFHIE K EET @)

Judgements (Continued) (&)
Revenue recognition from prepaid packages REBENEEZWHER

The recognition of revenue from the prepaid packages involves
significant management’s judgement to determine the
appropriate amount and timing based on the Group’s
accounting policy for revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the
financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Utilisation pattern of medical aesthetic services
Customers may not exercise all of their contractual rights of the
prepaid packages before expiry of the service period, and such
unexercised rights are referred to as breakage. The Group
determines the expected breakage amount with reference to
the Group’s historical experience on the utilisation of prepaid
packages and the expected utilisation pattern, as appropriate.
Estimates of expected breakage amount are sensitive to
changes in circumstances and the Group’s past experience
may not be representative of the actual outcome in the future.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use
assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the medical aesthetic services sector, the historical default rates
are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The
Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note
17 to the financial statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
(“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term,
and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Operating Segment Information

The Group has one reportable operating segment, namely the
non-surgical medical aesthetic services segment, and is
principally engaged in the provision of medical aesthetic
services and the sale of skincare products in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Information reported to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment is
focused on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the
Group’s resources are integrated and no discrete operating
segment financial information is available. Accordingly, no
operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information
(@) Revenue from external customers
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2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Hong Kong B 431,976 350,547
Mainland China Fh B AT B, 31,141 13,368
463,117 363,915

The revenue information above is based on the locations
of the services provided or products delivered.
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4. QOperating Segment Information (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)
(b) Non-current assets

LB D IER (&)
HEER (2
(b) FERBEE

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FH&T

Hong Kong BB 210,051 255,003
Mainland China AR g i, 2,935 664
212,986 255,667

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments
and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

Since no revenue derived from sales to a single customer of the
Group has accounted for over 10% of the Group’s total revenue
during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no
information about major customers is presented.

EHIFRBDEENEMRBEEEN
NEEL  BTEERERTANRE
ERIBEE °

FEEFER

B ZE2023F 2022463 A31 HILEE
HRARERE-ZEFAMEHEEEEN
Yoz I AL FR R AN R B A W 719 10% -
MIEEINEERFER -

5. Revenue, Other Income and Gain, Net HAa g A R s 5%
An analysis of revenue is as follows: Hﬁl?&ﬁﬁﬁD—F :
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Revenue from contracts with customers ZTFEF&HkE
Treatment services BRERE 333,213 289,006
Skincare products EEEM 129,573 74,295
Medical consultation services BREEHRRS 9 15
Prescription and dispensing of B 77 K B B2 PR 7%
medical products 322 509
463,117 363,915
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gain, Net Continued) 5. Iz ~ WA RIS F58 (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers ) e L&
(i) Disaggregated revenue information i) ZHFVKEER
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Types of goods or services ERSREES
Provision of medical aesthetic IRt EE X R RE
services 333,544 289,620
Sale of skincare products HEEEEMR 129,573 74,295
Total revenue from contracts EREALBIE
with customers 463,117 363,915
Geographical markets i T 35
Hong Kong B 431,976 350,547
Mainland China A [ A 4t 31,141 13,368
Total revenue from contracts BEA MBI
with customers 463,117 363,915
Timing of revenue recognition Wi Fe PR R
Goods or services transferred RS EEE R R
at a point in time 129,904 74,819
Services transferred over time Y R R AR TS 333,213 289,096
Total revenue from contracts ERAHBNE
with customers 463,117 363,915
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gain, Net (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

sk -

EF
(i)

Han A R a F =8 #)
BRI ()

PR EER (4F)
THRERARE HRANKRES
% BRSEHARSHINAD
aE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&TT
Revenue recognised that was STARSHUENEED
included in contract liabilities at ERERIE ¢
the beginning of the reporting
period:
Treatment services BIZRRT 100,473 142,239
Skincare products EEER 16 30
100,489 142,269

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Provision of medical aesthetic services

The performance obligation associated with treatment
services is satisfied over time when the services are
rendered. The performance obligations associated with
medical consultation services and prescription and
dispensing of medical products are satisfied at the point
in time when the services are rendered.

Sale of skincare products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the skincare products and payment is mainly on cash
and/or credit card settlement, except for corporate
customers, where payment is due within 60 days from
delivery.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

5. Revenue, Other Income and Gain, Net (Continued) 5.

An analysis of other income and gain, net is as follow:

W~ U A RS F5E48)
Hi A RIS FED T -

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Bank interest income RITHEUA 2,354 494

Government subsidies* RGN 6,678 648
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEDE  WBEN

plant and equipment, net RBEE W FEE 164 -

Others =) 249 172

9,445 1,314

Government subsidies mainly represent subsidies granted by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under the
anti-epidemic fund. There are no unfulfiled conditions or contingencies
relating to these subsidies.

BT e = REF BT HITRERFR [T
RIVRES | TR THME - ARZEME
BB RIAREROGRIFRIAER -
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6. Finance Costs 6. BIFEAKAR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BB ARSI T -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FaxT FAT
Interest on bank loans RITEFFE 327 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEE 3,333 3,027
3,660 3,027
7. Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 7. BREEN&RA,(EIE)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBBRBAEN (BB HLEM
(crediting): B (GEA) TEIS BB
2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bz THET FET
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE I 2 2,000 1,700
Depreciation of property, mE - BERRETE
plant and equipment 13 44,449 24,797
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 14(a) 46,098 34,991
Lease payments not included in T AHER GRS
the measurement of lease liabilities ZHEERK 14(c) 13,232 6,540
Covid-19-related rent concessions R 8 A ST i A AR A
from lessors ik 14(c) = (1,297)
Employee benefit expense (excluding RERAAL
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (TREFEEEME (HFFS)) -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances o BAL KRR 160,981 111,088
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRBMET B
(defined contribution schemes) (ERMHHKEE) 6,559 4,669
167,540 115,757
Foreign exchange differences, net e ZEFE 256 (264)
Impairment of goodwil EERE 15 4,305 -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of B S EWEEFURE, (R ERE)
trade receivables, net FE 17 561 (92)
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off of items of HE TEmE  BER
property, plant and equipment, net REEAER (W) FE (164) 3
Write-off of inventories WiEFE 2,094 -
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BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration 8. #ER T ETH A S

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BEEBSHAXSMER QD ([H#
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Frl)&EA EmHA - FAQRIEHE
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the 383(1)@) * (b) * (o) XM IGEA KR F (&
“Stock Exchange”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong EEFNREN)EOIE2 DB E 2 ANF
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies EEERTETHAEMESET :

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees weE 1,212 1,212
Other emoluments: Hib & -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e~ TEAL MORRh 8,672 8,336
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  iRKAE FIzH 2 5%
(defined contribution scheme) (ERHEREED 36 36
8,708 8,372
9,920 9,584
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIAFHMITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors REANRBILIERITESZTHM
during the year were as follows: T
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David Bl K] 4 A 204 204
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BB AN A 204 204
Mr. Li Wai Kwan TEERE 204 204
612 612
There were no other emoluments payable to the FN - BT E AL FER T 3E
independent non-executive directors during the year BITESE2B® (20224 - &) o
(2022: Ni).
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneraton 8. &EERFEBTHAEME &)
(Continued)
(b) Executive directors (b) BITES
Retirement
Salaries, benefit
bonuses and scheme Total
Fees allowances contributions remuneration
e BIKER
e ARER HE 3 BHH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FTET TET THT
2023 2023 F
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi (‘Mrs. Gigi Ma") B2 2+ ([ HEEIM & 1) = 6,000 18 6,018
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln (ERREYitd - 2,672 18 2,690
Dr. Lam Ping Yan MEBBE 600 - - 600
600 8,672 36 9,308
2022 2022
Mrs. Gigi Ma SRMmE L - 6,187 18 6,205
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln FmEE - 2,149 18 2,167
Dr. Lam Ping Yan HREBE 600 - - 600
600 8,336 36 8,972
During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by FR - AEBEBRERTANESS A
the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or sk EMBERIENE - EAIARE
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of B 5N AR E E 1% 2 258 sk BB
office (2022: Nil). E(2022%F : &) »
There was no arrangement under which a director or a FR - BMEFEHFBTHMAEN
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any B RAEWNETHTFMO T
remuneration during the year (2022: Nil). (2022 4F : 47) o
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9.

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2022: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining three (2022: three) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

T & &E=HES
FRAREE=HHIEES B2IEMRE (2022
F:MB)ES - FIFBEERN XM
8o ERNHB=Z(2022F : =£) AR
RAESHEETHRABNESFHIE
EBMFHIFBET

follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e TEALNOEBh 15,537 10,720

Retirement benefit scheme contributions BIRER T2 =0
(defined contribution scheme) (REH®FREED 54 47
15,591 10,767

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

FMNFATHENIFEERIFEETT
BABESFHHEEHABLT

Number of employees

BEAH
2023 2022
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 /87T % 3,000,00078 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 & 7T & 4,000,000 78 7T - 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T % 4,500,000 8 7T - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 /& 7T % 5,500,000 78 7T 3 -
3 3
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10. Income Tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the
Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000)
of assessable profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25%
(2022: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed
at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%).

10. PSR
BEBNEHRBBREBEFAREEEENGE
O R B & A 1£16.5% (2022 4F ¢
16.5%) MFH REHR B « i AEE—H
M A RIBRAN - %A F) AT SRR A
BHTITHAERKER -ZWBAAE
2,000,000 7T (20224 : 2,000,000
JC ) FE R W m F $28.25% (2022 4F ¢
8.25%) MTL R NFL + #2 T HIE R A FI
BIl1% 16.5% (2022 F : 16.5%) M) Fi & 4K

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT

Current — Hong Kong BNER — &%
Charge for the year FRZ M 5,820 5,792
Underprovision in prior years BAREFERETR 81 47
Deferred (note 25) BIE (5E25) (9,267) (20)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FRBBEIL(B5) 858 (3,366) 5,819

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit/
(loss) before tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate to the tax
charge/(credit) at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

BMEBEEREREBRBANERN (8
B)RIEMBEE (H%) BIZREE
ERBEAEMNBIEMS(HR) 0L

ENE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FH&T
Profit/(loss) before tax BB AT A (E1E) (23,867) 31,201
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of  18& 4 A F 1 E 16.5% 51 5
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) (20224 : 16.5%) (3,938) 5,148
Lower tax rate under two-tiered AR F SRR R S| E THRIER X
profits tax rates regime (165) (165)
Difference in tax rates for specific provinces #5E & 17 8k & U # BB BT B /Y
or enacted by local authority =58 (1,285) (945)
Adjustments in respect of current tax FLIBE HARE BN HA R 1B
of previous periods EL A 81 47
Income not subject to tax BARBUA (1,368) (269)
Expenses not deductible for tax T HIFL A 2 1,358 1,226
Tax losses not recognised RERRIEEE 2,084 2,779
Others HAth (133) (2,002)
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s BEAEBERRETERES L
effective tax rate (&) (3,366) 5,819
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11.

12.

13.

Dividend 11, iz B
The board of directors of the Company does not recommend RAFIEEETEHZRMNEZE2023F3
the payment of any dividend in respect of the year ended 31 A31 BIEFEEMRB (2022 4F : &) °
March 2023 (2022: Nil).
Earnings/(Loss) Per Share Attributable to 12. RAmlEBRERGB ARG
Ordinary Equity Holders of the Company FRAEF(EE)
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount is GIREARETN(EER)NLEIEREARAAN
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity AT ERERNEAEAEGREEER
holders of the Company of HK$20,501,000 (2022: profit of 20,501,000/ JT(2022% : & Al
HK$25,382,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary 25,382,000/8 70) M F R B BT E R
shares of 400,000,000 (2022: 400,000,000) in issue during the o #E S 15 £400,000,000 A% (2022 4F -
year. 400,000,000 ) T E S -
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue HZE2023F K 2022F 3 A31HILFE -
during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022. AEBWED B TETHE LB -
Property, Plant and Equipment 13. Y%~ WFE MRE
Leasehold Furiture ~ Treatment Tools and Office Motor Computer
improvements  and fixtures devices  equipment  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
HENEEE  HEREE BRRE IARBRE BOERE RE EKRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TEn THR TR TEn ThR TR TEn
31 March 2023 2023F3831R
At 31 March 2022 and RNNEIANER
at 1 Apri 2022: RA0E4A1E:
Cost i 82,193 8,307 91,529 6,203 817 2,431 13,640 205,210
Accumulated depreciation  Z:HE (30,416) (2,124 (43,210) (3,266) (497) (2,260) (5,739) (87,532)
Net carrying amount FREE 51,777 6,273 48,319 2017 320 1 7,001 117,678
At 1 April 2022 R2022E4A1H 51,7111 6,273 48,319 2917 320 1 7,901 117,678
Addtions NE 19,091 438 3,976 1,002 56 - 3,307 27,960
Depreciation provided during T &
the year (26,089) (1,672) (12,676) (1,165) (102) (122) (2,623) (44,449)
Disposal/wrte-of e /i = @ (72) = = = @ (18)
Exchange realignment B A% 2 - - (12) - - (22) (36)
At31March 2023, netof ~ H0BE3A31R -
accumulated depreciation BB EGTE 44,717 5,035 39,547 2,832 274 49 8,561 101,075
At 31 March 2023 R203E3A31A :
Cost A 101,280 8,832 94,463 7,266 854 2431 16,720 231,846
Accumulated depreciation  23tHE (56,503) (8,797) (54,916) (4434) (580) (2,389) (8,159) (180,771)
Net carrying amount FHFE 1 5,035 30,547 2,832 274 49 8,561 101,075
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 13. W% - W FE L& @)
Leasehold Fumiture Treatment Tools and Office Motor Computer

improvements ~ and fixtures devices equipment equipment vehicles equipment Total

BENERE GERRE  BERE IARRE  BLERE "E Bk a5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL THL TEL T

31 March 2022 202%3A31A
At 1 Aprl 2021: RNE4E1R:
Cost A 35,410 2,18 47634 38% 574 2,351 9,358 101,440
Accumulated depreciaion  Z&HTE (21,356) (1268) (35,295) (2,604) (420) 2119 (3880) (66,942)
Net carrying amount REGE 14,054 950 12,339 1,291 154 28 5478 34,498
At 1 April 2021 R E4A1A 14,054 950 12,339 1291 154 232 5478 34,498
Additions AE 50,348 6,347 438% 2,686 243 80 4312 107,971
Depreciation provided during £ & &
the year (12,628 (1,021) (7,915) (1,060) (77) (141) (1,955) (24,797)
Write-off ik - ] - - - - - 0
Exchange realignment ERHE 3 - - - - _ 6 9
At31 March 2022, netof 520223 A31R -
accumulated depreciaion BB EEHTE 51,177 6,273 48319 2017 320 17 7,901 17,678
At 31 March 2022 RONEIANA:
Cost B 82,193 8,397 91,529 6,203 817 2,431 13,640 205,210
Accumulated depreciaton  2337E (30,416) (2,124 (43.210) (3.286) (497) 2.260) (5739) 67532)
Net carmying amount FHFE 51,777 6,273 48319 2917 320 il 7,901 117,678
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14, Leases 14, fHE

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for its medical aesthetic centres,
retail stores, office premises, car park spaces and warehouses
used in its operations. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from 4 months to 6 years. There are several lease
contracts that include variable lease payments, which are
further discussed below.

(a) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are as follows:

REBEREBAA
AEERLEMANBEXTH L F
EE MRAEYE  FESRAETA
HEAHN - MEHERLEHARN F4E
HE6%F - NN E—TimBeEsn
HENFWETHEHESD

@) ERAEEE
ARENEREEERBERLFA
ZE}T

Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$’000
FET
At 1 April 2021 R2021F 4 A1H 42,719
Additions B 122,151
Depreciation charge during the year FRNFEBR (34,991)
Exchange realignment P 3, 3 = 19
At 31 March 2022 and at 1 April 2022 R20229F 3 A31 B kN2022F 4 A1 H 129,898
Additions NE 25,535
Depreciation charge during the year FRIEEA (46,098)
Exchange realignment HE 5 R (31)
At 31 March 2023 R 2023%F 3 A31H 109,304
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14. Leases (Continued) 14. HHE &)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBIEAERBA (E)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

HEABERAABELRFRESHMT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
At beginning of year REA]) 127,584 42 486
New leases s 24,321 115,111
Accretion of interest recognised F MR EIZ 0
during the year 3,333 3,027
Covid-19-related rent concessions RE A A BT A AR A
from lessors HE % = (1,297)
Payments during the year FRRK (44,105) (31,762)
Exchange realignment PE 5 2 27) 19
At end of year RER 111,106 127,584
Analysed into: DA
Due within one year —F R EEA 44,467 37,997
Due in the second year 5 F3|H 29,520 36,174
Due in the third to fifth years, inclusive F=ZFhEZ|H(BIEEERE) 37,119 48,010
Due beyond five years AFEEIE - 5,403
111,106 127,584

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
35 to the financial statements.

The Group had applied the practical expedient to all

eligible rent concessions granted by the lessors for leases
of certain properties in the prior year.
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14. Leases (Continued)

14, HE#®)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEBIEAEBA (E)
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) RNEFPHIRHABEEFBEN SN
leases are as follows: T
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FAT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEHNE 3,333 3,027
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {# A& EITEEH 46,098 34,991
Expense relating to short-term leases A SREER X
(included in property rentals and GFTAmERSR
related expenses) R Y) 7,453 5,430
Variable lease payments not included in -~ Tt AHEG B EZ TS HENK
the measurement of lease liabilities (GtADEM S RAERY)
(included in property rentals and
related expenses) 5,779 1,110
Covid-19-related rent concessions REHAAETEHAEENHASRE
from lessors = (1,297)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss R Bz iR 48 %E 62,663 43,261
(d) The Group leased certain retail stores which contain (d FTEEHEETZEES HPEF
variable lease payment terms that are based on certain AEFEENRIGR - BRANRIR
percentage of the revenue of the operations being BHEEASLETHNK ?K 1 1¢ iR
undertaken therein pursuant to the terms and conditions Fﬁ KEEBHRES S E
as stipulated in the lease contracts. There are also B ZEMHENTAR 1EE¢F%$$E
minimum annual base rental arrangements for these SR
leases.
(e) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 29(c) (e) HERSREBBRUIEREM
to the financial statements. 29(c) N FE o
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15. Goodwill 15. &
HK$’000
FA&T
Cost and carrying amount at 1 April 2021, R2021F4A1H ~ 202243 A31 A&
at 31 March 2022 and at 1 April 2022 20229 4 A1 B2 AREEE 4,305
Impairment during the year (note 7) FRRE(IFE7) (4,305)
Cost at 31 March 2023, net of 20233 A31 B 2 - Mk 25HRIE
accumulated impairment -
At 31 March 2023: R2023F3 A31H :
Cost B AN 4,305
Accumulated impairment Z2EHRE (4,305)
Net carrying amount REVFE -
Impairment testing of goodwill BERENR

Goodwill of HK$4,305,000 acquired through business
combination has been allocated to a non-surgical medical
aesthetic service cash-generating unit (the “CMM CGU”) for
impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the CMM CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by senior management
covering a 36-month (2022: 36-month) period. Assumptions
were used in the value in use calculation of the CMM CGU for
31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based its
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

° Revenue is estimated based on the business trend in the
industry of medical aesthetic operation, historical average
spending per client and client cover, taking into account
the number of treatment rooms in each medical aesthetic
centre, centre locations, market conditions and economic
outlook.
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15.

106.

17.

Goodwill (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

o Cost of inventories sold is estimated based on the rate of

increase in revenue and the expected market conditions.

° The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
beyond the 36-month period is 3% (2022: 3%) for each

reporting period.

° The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific

risks relating to the cash-generating unit. The discount rate

applied to the cash flow projections is 16% (2022: 15%).

As at 31 March 2023, following the refinement of the medical

practitioner team of the CMM CGU, the Group performed an

impairment assessment of goodwill. An impairment of goodwiill

of HK$4,305,000 was recognised based on the recoverable
amount of the CMM CGU as at 31 March 2023 of
HK$13,506,000. The impairment loss is included in other
expenses, net in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income.

15. P2 (&)

B AR (E)

BEHEFERAERNRSERER
BHIm TR

o IS EANBIRESREMAER
R AL REHAR%(20224F 1 3%) °

o  FIRAZIBERBRBAITERE -
Wi BRIR & E A B BN T
Rk - RemEFRRMEANITIER
R E16% (2022 4 © 15%) ©

M2023F3A31H * HCMMIER € E A&
BUTEBEERE  AEBHPEE
TRAERHE - RIECMMIREELBMR
20233 A31H ® 7 W B £
13,506,000 7 7T i 72 75 2R 18 4,305,000
B o MEEBEBFAGEBEREME
T s 2k 1) EL At 5 SR 8 o

Inventories 16. 75
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FiET
Skincare products HEEEMm 31,174 32,118
Consumables and other supplies JEREm R H AL L 7,020 5,851
38,194 37,969
Trade Receivables 2 5 pE g BE 2%
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Trade receivables H 5 RINERR 18,674 2,273
Impairment RE (597) (36)
18,077 2,237
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17. Trade Receivables (Continued) 17. B5EIERI (&)

The Group’s trading terms with its individual customers are
mainly on cash and/or credit card settlement while the trading
terms with its corporate customers are on credit. The credit
period is generally 2 to 30 days for credit card settlement from
the respective financial institutions and up to 60 days for
corporate customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the

AEBEERENEFPNRZEREER
Rek/HERAREE mMEAGER
FPORSERREEHEE - B SR
BAGHAREENEER —RB/2E30
B MEMREFHEEN&KSZ K60
B o ZNE BB ) BRAR B 1R R WER B B UK
B NREREEERR =SRERE
BEHEHNORER AERELERE
85 RN ERT A TMEAmKE
ISR - BHRYSRATER

reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

RBEHR - BEHRREFIZEZAH
KGR B RBREEOREDTNT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Within 1 month 1{EARN 13,331 763
1 to 3 months 123184 4,032 896
Over 3 months B3R 3 & A 714 578
18,077 2,237
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade B EWEITOREEEBBRENEEs T -
receivables are as follows:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
At beginning of year REL] 36 128
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment  JE{EE 1R CREEERE)
losses), net (note 7) FEE(HEET) 561 (92)
At end of year RER 597 36
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17. Trade Receivables (Continued) 17. E SRR (#)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date NERE BB B REREETRE
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates DT UETEBEHEEERE - BEERD
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer ERpEEEUEBENZERE, Y
segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the EETOEAM B HEGETE - ZtE
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and ARl AR INELAE R - EERENAR
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the EHHABNEBBTEMEH - 2R
reporting date about past events, current conditions and RARFEREEETEANSERA ST
forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade BE e —fRME  WE 5 EINRIEE
receivables are written off if past due for more than one year BiE—F o BT UM - B2 6
and are not subject to enforcement activity. TTIEENIRBR ©
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure TREHIGAEEEZ 5 FE R ZUE F#
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: WEENEERBHNER
As at 31 March 2023 7R202353A31H
Past due
B
1to3 Over
Current months 3 months Total
BN & 1Z3MEA BB3IMEA FoEy
ECL rate JEEEEHEXR 1.00% 2.28% 36.59% 3.20%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) BEmE(FET) 16,803 745 1,126 18,674
ECLs (HK$'000) BHEEEERE
(F&T) 168 17 412 597
As at 31 March 2022 A2022%3A31H
Past due
penkei|
1t03 Over
Current months 3 months Total
B1ER 12318 A B3 1EA et
ECL rate HHEEBEX 1.55% 1.43% 1.87% 1.58%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) BEEEE(TAT) 775 909 589 2,273
ECLs (HK$000) EHEEER
(Fi&m) 12 13 11 36
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18. Prepayments, Deposits, Other Receivables and 18, AT 218 - &4 - HEfbEULEE

Other Assets R H A&
2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FHET FET
Prepayments TEfRRIE 7,042 12,872
Contract costs BRI (@) 2,664 2,247
Deposits by eea 34,070 27,538
Deposits paid for purchases BEME  BEIEZEHEE
of items of property, plant MEfike
and equipment 2,607 3,786
Other receivables Ho b R BER IR 3,090 1,610
49,473 48,053
Analysed into: DR
Non-current portion IERBNER 15,460 16,794
Current portion mENEE S 34,013 31,259
49,473 48,053
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to FTALIEBT SR EEY FE
deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history HREENZE REREFRBHE
of default and past due amounts. As at 31 March 2023 and B o R2023F 20223 A31H - F518
2022, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal. BT A E -
Note: BiaE -
(@) Contract costs (@) B HIBAR
The contract costs primarily related to the incremental costs of obtaining a FEHROBEFPANSERA(NEERE
contract with a customer, which represent sales commission and bonuses MENSEREENE TN BEANE
paid or payable to doctors and staff, that are recognised as contract costs RN ERE KR R IER B E LI ©
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Such costs are ZERARBENE N B ERR R
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the contract liabilities to FIRIBE P HER ©

which they relate is recognised as revenue.

Management expects that incremental costs paid to doctors and staff as a ERERY ARESEAREEMIMTEEAR
result of obtaining prepaid packages are recoverable. The Group has ETMEEMARTYE - Htt REBRK
therefore capitalised these costs as contract costs in the amount of 2023F3A31H B AR AUE LKA
HK$2,664,000 (2022 HK$2,247,000) at 31 March 2023. 2,664,0003% T (2022 4F : 2,247,000 7T ) /5
Contract costs are amortised when the related revenue is recognised. BREBEKER GONAESEE-
During the year ended 31 March 2023, the amount of amortisation was HZE2023F3AALFE BHESEA
HK$14,371,000 (2022: HK$12,329,000) and no impairment loss on 14,371,000 7T (20224F : 12,329,000 7T) *
contract costs was made. WA KK AT REEE -
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19. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Time  19. R4 RIS ZE WA KB K

Deposits T HATF K
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Cash and bank balances B KIRTTHE 64,499 65,680
Time deposits TEHRTF R 114,826 62,476
179,325 128,156

Less: Pledged time deposits, pledged for & : BHER R EEEE mMER

credit card facilities /) BRI E HR T 3K (62,414) (62,476)
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY 116,911 65,680

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) amounted to HK$13,116,000 (2022: HK$422,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods
of between 1 month and 12 months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances and time
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

RBEBHR REENR S RIRIT
HEBRARTERFERAARB(TARE])
it fE° /13,116,000 JT (20224 :
422,000#87) - ARETAIEBHILBRR
Hib B ¥ - AT - ARIEF BA A SNE
EEKEOREE SERNEETER
EAEBEEESRERERRINEZE
BHRITEARBLBRAEME

RITRERBARITERMEGFENZF
B RFRIAE o ERFRIEAEE
RRSFRRAH1EAE12EA N
TRBMEL - WiKE 8 EHBFRF X
BREUVA B o RITEBR R ERFHRTIFA
TR R RE B R AFHOSRTT -
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20. Trade Payables 20. BHENED
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RMEHR - BEHRENRFIZEZHH
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: SERERERESTET -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET Fi&T
Within 1 month 18 AR 10,544 7,829
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and generally have LB oENEZRTE  PIHEES %
an average settlement term of 30 days. 7308 o
21. Other Payables and Accruals 21. EMEMNIRA N EGTER
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Other payables and accruals Hitbpe IR N e =T 2 20,707 20,260
Receipts in advance TEU R TE 593 207
21,300 20,467
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have terms HMEMNBERTTE  FHA1E3EAR -

ranging from 1 to 3 months.
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22. Contract Liabilities and Deferred Revenue 22. BB ENREREY S
2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B =E FHET FHIT
Deferred revenue EIEW = 37,856 13,775
Contract liabilities aHaE (@) 144,192 116,463
182,048 130,238
Note: MsE -
(@) Details of contract liabilities are as follow: @ AXBESENT :
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FA&T
Advances received from customers BREFBH
Treatment services B2 R 144,188 116,446
Sale of skincare products HEEEED 4 17
Total contract liabilities BEHNAEE 144,192 116,463

Contract liabilities include advances received from customers to render
treatment services and deliver skincare products. The increase in contract
liabilities in 2023 was mainly due to the increase in advances received
from customers in relation to the treatment services. The carrying amount
of contract liabilities represented the amount of the transaction prices
allocated to the remaining performance obligations that are unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied as at the end of the reporting period. The contract
liabilities in respect of the treatment services are expected to be
recognised as revenue within the service periods normally ranging from 3
months to 18 months from the date of purchase. In the opinion of the
directors, the actual outcome may be different from the amounts
estimated and will be subject to the customers’ actual utilisation pattern
and prevailing laws and regulations, taking into account of specific market
conditions.

BRHEEBEARBEEERE RN ERE
G R B P ER o R2028 FRE K BIE
BINEEHRCREPRIZIRTS 2 50 AT
B aNEENRAERSREENSBENE
FE(RBERRHRETRID RET) R
ZERER - ARERRRBOEGHBERY
BRIREE (— RN FERE R HE 3EA

E18EA) AR R E - BEFERR - LAt
REFEMTRE - BRRERA LG D

TR ERFEFPHEREABREN - UARR
TERERBITE
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22. Contract Liabilities and Deferred Revenue 22. BRBE RS @)
(Continued)
Note: (Continued) Bzt - (88)
(@) (Continued) (@) (&)
The movements in contract liabilities are as follows: AHBENESHIOT
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
At beginning of year REA 116,463 154,240
Receipts from sales of one-off treatments HE—IRMEERRER
and treatment packages, net PS8 588 341,713 252,536
Revenue recognised upon the REERREEDERKE
provision of treatment services (313,545) (289,096)
Revenue recognised upon sale of skincare products & 5 14 B fER UM S (439) (1,217)
At end of year RER 144,192 116,463
23. Interest-bearing bank borrowings 23. AT EIRITERK
2023 2022
Contractual Contractual
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
EHFIE (%) E FTHET AHFE%) FH FET
Portions of bank loans ~ Hong Kong 2024 6,660 - - -
due for repayment Interbank
within one year or Offered Rate
on demand (“HIBOR”)
— unsecured +2.5
—FNBIHIRERK BERBITEERE 2024 F
BENIDRIT ([BEBRT
R — FAEHFE ] +25
Portions of bank loans ~ HIBOR +2.5 2025-2026 12,510 - - -
due for repayment
after one year which

contain repayment
on demand clause
(note) — unsecured

—FREEE EBBITEERFE 20255 -2026 F
(BEREJER +2.5

B3R B BB D RITE K
(Bf5E) — i

19,170
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23.

24.

: : ) =~ S= [t Eh e
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (Continueq) 23. FFERITER @)
Note: BT
The term loans of the Group containing repayable on demand clauses as at 31 R2023F3A31H - ANEEREEA19,170,000 7
March 2023 with a carrying amount of HK$19,170,000 (2022: Nil) have been TT(20224F : )M THE R (BSIREREBIER)
classified in total as current liabilities. Accordingly, portions of the bank loans due AEEDEARBEE - HLt - M2023F3A31H -
for repayment after one year as at 31 March 2023 with a carrying amount of BRTE{E A 12,510,000 7T (2022 4F : ) N —F 1% 5|
HK$12,510,000 (2022: Nil) have been classified as current liabilities. For the HEENRTERBICHEARSEE - gt it
purpose of the above analysis, the loans are included within current interest- AWTE - BRI AR BIRITIER - LD A
bearing bank borrowings and analysed into bank loans repayable within one year R—F AR BERKEENIRITER -
or on demand.
Ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand clause and based on the maturity W EAIRE R BRI ER RS THE
terms of these term loans, the Group’s bank borrowings are repayable: HEOBIHERR  NEBMFTRBITERERATH
HEE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Within one year —FR 6,660 -
In the second year £ _F 6,660 -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-EAF(RIEEEMT) 5,850 -
19,170 -
The Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong REERIRITEFIIAAETINE -
dollars.
P . /E =
Provision for Reinstatement Costs 24. (B1ERARE

The provision for reinstatement costs represents management’s
best estimate of the Group’s liabilities of the costs of
dismantling and removing the leasehold improvements and
restoring the leased premises which they are currently located
back to their original state of condition if and when the Group
vacates these leased premises.

EEXAEEREERRBYRERBRE
EMEREURFHAREEBLZREHE
MEREEHRMEMNEENEER
SRR A AR B B B R EMRET -

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FER FAT

At beginning of year REF 12,205 5,597
Additional provision REINE A 1,214 7,040

Amounts utilised during the year FANBEAFIE (50) (433)
Exchange realignment M 54, 8 B (1) 1
At end of year REFR 13,368 12,205
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24. Provision for Reinstatement Costs (Continued) 24, (B1ERK ANEEHE (&)
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Analysed into: DA
Non-current portion EmENER 9,749 10,161
Current portion mEE S 3,619 2,044
13,368 12,205
25. Deferred Tax 25. EENIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the EARIBEERABERENNESFHNT ¢

year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets IRIEFHIBEE
Depreciation Losses
in excess available

of related  for offsetting
depreciation against future

allowance taxable profits Others Total
Al IR 8
BEARTE RRIERB
BENTE RANEE Hits st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TR THET
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4 /18 1,565 5,457 14 7,036
Deferred tax credited FMEAERER
to profit or loss during BIERIE (F3E10)
the year (note 10) 663 796 131 1,590
At 31 March 2022 and R2022F3 A3 AR
at 1 April 2022 202264 F1H 2,228 6,253 145 8,626
Deferred tax credited FREABES
to profit or loss during EIERIE (F5E10)
the year (note 10) 1,574 8,791 730 11,095
At 31 March 2023 202353 H31 A 3,802 15,044 875 19,721
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25. Deferred Tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities

25. IEEFLIE ()
BB EAE

Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related
depreciation

B AR ITE
WITERE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4HA1H 1,825
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FAHK B B EETTE
during the year (note 10) (FF5E10) 1,670
At 31 March 2022 and at 1 April 2022 R2022%F3A31B &
202244 A1 H 3,395
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FRHIk B BEMIELETRE
during the year (note 10) (MF5E10) 1,828
At 31 March 2023 202343 A31H 5,223
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25. Deferred Tax (Continued) 25. IREFLIA ()

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

REREHR ETEEHEEERAE
ERNGAEMBARKEE - L TRAK
B LB SRS B M7 R E R IR A
BT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Net deferred tax assets recognised AT e MBI R ER
in the consolidated statement of RIETIB A R
financial position 17,643 8,033
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised N E MBI R R
in the consolidated statement of RIERIBEEFE
financial position (3,145) (2,802)
Net deferred tax assets ERERIE & = F 5 14,498 5,231

At 31 March 2023, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$69,227,000 (2022: HK$37,895,000), subject to the
agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department, that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

The Group also had estimated tax losses arising in Mainland
China of approximately HK$22,823,000 (2022: HK$11,116,000),
subject to the agreement by relevant tax authorities, that will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits.
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20.

27.

Share Capital 26. R 7N
Shares [} g
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000 & =R H1E
HK$0.01 each 0.01 B TH iR 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREE
400,000,000 ordinary shares of 400,000,000 & & I H1E
HK$0.01 each 0.01 TRy L imAR 4,000 4,000

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in
note 27 to the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of attracting and retaining the best available
personnel, providing additional incentive to eligible participants,
and promoting the success of the business of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, the Company’s substantial
shareholders, and any consultants, advisers, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners
and service providers of the Group. The Scheme was approved
and adopted on 19 December 2016 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at 10 January 2017.

27.

B
BRAAR DR BB S M F TN I 5
WERMET27A ©

A ERT 8

7R B 6T — O AR A B (T &t
B EERIIREBRBEHRAS - ¥
RS S £ 2 R IR A SN SRR I
T B 7 5 0 4475 ) L 4

ZATEZABERSHEREARAES
(BEBIIENTES AEEHHME
B ARAEERE - REBEAAN
AT B DHEE Ae2m - HE
BeRE-BF BERBUEERBHE
B o iZETEIE 2016 12 B 19 HEHE
HERER - MR BITEESIERT I » 7%
ETEIBmZ AR 10FERDARS -

REREZTEEERD 2 RITEER
B2 EEHERITEBRBASNRARTRN
20171 B10HBE BTN Z10% °
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27.

28.

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 7
days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and shall not exceed ten years from the date of offer
of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer; (i) the
average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (i)
the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

During the year, the Company did not grant any share options
to any eligible participant under the Scheme (2022: Nil).

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein during the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 104 of

the financial statements.
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29. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash ~ 29. &I & R &M
Flows
(@) Major non-cash transactions (@ FEXRERS
The Group entered into rental agreements in respect of its AEBREREERL - TEJE - 3
medical aesthetic centres, retail stores, office premises, car NEYE - FEBNEE F EINTRE
park spaces and warehouses. During the year, the Group Wik o TN AEERFEREEE
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease BHBLARE  BHEEMENTEE
liabilities of HK$25,535,000 (2022: HK$122,151,000) and ZHEMEBED R A25,535,000
HK$24,321,000 (2022: HK$115,111,000), respectively, in 7B 7T (2022 £F : 122,151,000 7T, )
respect of lease arrangements for leased properties. 24,321,000 7T (20224 :
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the rental 115,111,000/ 7C0) - RIEREHH
agreements, the Group is required to restore the leased MR LR REBBEEZESTHE
properties to the conditions as stipulated in the rental EMEBEERERZE TR
agreements. Accordingly, the Group had also accrued and Woo HI  REBEIE R RE R
capitalised the estimated restoration cost of HK$1,214,000 {b/BRER B E R TERTIEIER
(2022: HK$7,040,000) when such obligations have arisen. K1,214,000% J0(20224F :
7,040,000 L) °
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METBHELENEEEH
activities
2023 2023
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
FTESRITER HEas
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
At 1 April 2022 20224 51 H - 127,584
Changes from financing cash flows BMERESREZH 19,170 (40,772)
Interest paid classified as NDEALERSREN
operating cash flows BFE = (3,333)
Non-cash changes: RS FH -
New leases e = 24,321
Interest expense FERE = 3,333
Foreign exchange movement e i, 5 = (27)
At 31 March 2023 202343 A31H 19,170 111,106
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29. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 9. e e RERM T (&)
Flows (Continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) BMETBELENEEES (&)

activities (Continued)

2022 2022 F
Lease
liabilities
HEBE
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4 A1 H 42,486
Changes from financing cash flows MERESREE (28,735)
Interest paid classified as NEAEERSRENDHFE
operating cash flows (8,027)
Non-cash changes: RS EH
New leases HE 115,111
Interest expense B 3,027
Covid-19-related rent concessions KA HBAEFEDAABENHS R L
from lessors (1,297)
Foreign exchange movement PE H % 19
At 31 March 2022 R20229F3 A31H 127,684
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERESRHAKE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement FFAReRERNHEERSMHEA
of cash flows is as follows: BT
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Within operating activities LEEEA 16,565 9,567
Within financing activities BhEEENA 40,772 28,735
57,337 38,302
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

30. Pledge of Assets

Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s credit

31.

32.

card facilities granted by financial institutions are included in

note 19 to the financial statements.

Commitments
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of

the reporting period:

30. EEHH
HEMBEBERTAEBENERREESE
ETTBRASEEEFEER  BHRAFEH
R FEERT I FE19 ©

31, AIE
AREBAIR S HR G LA TR B AASE -

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Contracted, but not provided for: BEET4) - BRI -
Computer equipment BINERE 591 256
Tools and equipment TAREE 65 84
656 340

Related Party Transactions

@)

In addition to the balances, arrangements and
transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with a related party during the year:

32. FELTRS
@ BEEHBRREMBDFAHLY
g RH RIS RREREF
RE—HBEETEATEARS :

2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E FET FET
A related company: —fEEELNA -
Endorsement fee REE 0] 2,800 2,100

(i) The fee was paid for endorsement-related services provided by a
related company controlled by a controlling shareholder of the
Company. The fee was charged based on mutually agreed terms
and conditions.

) ZER T RANR R — RERBRR TR
I —MEE AR RENR AR
BRI » % BATDREEEHE
B R 2 fER A R
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BHZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

32. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 32. BERR 5 ()
(o) Compensation of key management personnel of the b)) AEBXTEZERAENHS (B
Group, including directors’ and chief executive's SRR SFIIRENESE N T
remuneration as disclosed in note 8 to the financial BEITBAEHB)WOT :

statements, is as follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Fees we 600 600
Short-term employee benefits REES R 8,672 8,336
Post-employment benefits BEB 18 18 F) 36 36
Total compensation paid to EfNEE2EEA BB
key management personnel 9,308 8,972
33. Financial Instruments by Category 33. EEE TR T A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RRERRSESRTAMBEEDAERT ¢
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Financial assets TREE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Financial assets at amortised cost: REHEN AT ENESREE -
Trade receivables B 5 MR SK 18,077 2,237
Financial assets included in prepayments, s+ ATERTFUE ~ 154~ HfbEl
deposits, other receivables and R RHMEENSREE
other assets 37,160 29,148
Pledged time deposits [REEECINSEEES /N 62,414 62,476
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 116,911 65,680
234,562 159,541
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33. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued)

Financial liabilities

33.

HEEEYHESRT A #)
SHAaE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: HHIEKAGTENEREAE

Trade payables B S EMNERER 10,544 7,829

Financial liabilities included in other T AE MR BR T N e 5T B A
payables and accruals HEmas 8,662 17,858
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHERITER 19,170 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 111,106 127,584
149,482 153,271

34. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged time deposits, trade receivables, the
current portion of financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits, other receivables and other assets, trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and
interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of the non-current portion of financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits, other receivables and other
assets has been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

34.

TR TANRFE
EEENLReMASEEY CER
EHES - EHEWIRR - sF AR
B RE - HiBWERREMEE
BHRNERNEREERD D AR
AP AEAMEN R R BR ARG R
RITEFNERBENAFEEERE
BREE  FEARZFTAREHRE
Hi e

SHAERABZATEAGRRSH
(IR E R BRI 812D TR
BZIANSBAR - THHERBR
AT

AEATENFOR - B - EERIERA R
HhEENTREEFRBILEDNORF
BRRERRAGRLER  FERR
RFISFERN T RORITHEITRIAL
ARREREFERFH
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. oEtEMREE B IENBER

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents, pledged time deposits and interest-bearing
bank borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits,
other receivables and other assets, trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and lease
liabilities, which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate
risk. The Group mitigates this risk by closely monitoring the
movements in interest rates and reviewing its available credit
facilities and their utilisation regularly.

At the end of the reporting period, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 25 basis points higher/lower, which was
considered reasonably possible by management, with all other
variables held constant, the loss before tax for the year would
have been increased/decreased by HK$48,000 (2022: Nil) as a
result of higher/lower interest expenses on bank borrowings.

Credit risk

The Group mainly transacts with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 March. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.
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B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023

HZE2023F 3 A31 HILFE

35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 March 2023

35. cRlEMEIEE ENREE &)

EERK (&)
BAERREERE(E)
R2023%F3 A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A TE
FEF#B 2HRBEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
BT B Y k(A7 #@st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TERT THER TERT THERT
Trade receivables* B S EMERR = = = 18,674 18,674
Financial assets included in AR - e
prepayments, deposits, HEWEDR R
other recelvables HEEER
and other assets TREE
— Normal*™* — EE* 37,160 - - - 37,160
Pledged time deposits BIRMEEETR
— Not yet past due — HAREH 62,414 - - - 62,414
Cash and cash equivalents BeRELEEY
— Not yet past due — HABH 116,911 - - - 116,911
216,485 - - 18,674 235,159
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
As at 31 March 2022

35. cRtEMREIEBENRBE &)

EERB(Z)
BAEKREERE(E)
MR20229F3 A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A8
FEE#E 2HEREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-TRE FRRE E=MEB @z Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TAT THEL THET TAET
Trade receivables* B 5 RS - - - 2,273 2,273
Financial assets included in SHAFERFE - RS-
prepayments, deposits, H IR
other receivables and Hith & EH)
other assets SREE
— Normal** — FE* 29,148 - - - 29,148
Pledged time deposits EERERER
— Not yet past due — HAREE 62,476 - - - 62,476
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEED
— Not yet past due — MR 65,680 - - - 65,680
157,304 - - 2,273 159,577
. For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach * MAEBERAERERECENE 5 EUKERTK

for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 17 to the financial statements.

> The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they
are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be
“doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to

credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
17 to the financial statements.
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B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F3A31 HIEFE

35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. @ EtEfREIE B ERECE ®)
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EER (&)
Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy AR AEEEZERERN MEERITFNE
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. —HETRS  WBEERR - FESE
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/ FREBRIREE HFHETER - RR
counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had EHR ARAEEE S EWRRERE
certain concentrations of credit risk as 61% (2022: 52%) and H61% (20224 : 52%) K 84% (20224 :
84% (2022: 89%) of the Group’s gross trade receivables were 89%) DAl BIER A EEHEREREARR
due from the Group’s largest debtor and five largest debtors, KEEARZUE WAEBEETEE
respectively. S @ o
Liquidity risk REE SRR
In order to manage liquidity risk, the Group monitors and BEBLTHESRRE  NEBEEEE MR
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed BEEEBERARENHE S RIRESEEYD
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations K U AREBRMSEIREESIWHE
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group REESTENSNTE - NEBTHIZE
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has CEHIBESHAUERE XTI
adequate financial resources in meeting its financial obligations. BRBTHBEEE -
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the RIEER  REBERDITLARITIR
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual NZmemaEnREERnT

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2023 20234
On demand/
less than 1to5
1 year years Total
BREX/
DPR—F —ZRE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THET THET
Trade payables B I EMERR 10,544 - 10,544
Financial liabilities included in SARMEMRTIE
other payables and accruals [EATEAMNSRAE 8,662 = 8,662
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note) FTERITER (M) 19,170 - 19,170
Lease liabilities HERE 47,374 69,325 116,699
85,750 69,325 155,075
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: : : : : = LA e
35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. TRIAMREIE BZE MK @)
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REES R (E)
2022 2022 F
On demand/
less than 1105 Over 5
1 year years years Total
REXR/
PR—F —ERF AFEUE FCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FAET FET FET
Trade payables B SRR 7,829 - - 7,829
Financial liabilities included in AT AR BRF R
other payables and accruals B ERANSRARE 17,858 - - 17,858
Lease liabilities HERE 41,667 94,826 5,435 141,928
67,354 94,826 5,435 167,615
Note: B E
Included in the above interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 Eatpd2023F 3 A31 BMAKE BERITEREE
March 2023 are term loans with a carrying amount of HK$19,170,000 (2022: Nil). BR E {8 /219,170,000 7T (2022 F : )M EHE
The loan agreements contain a repayment on demand clause giving the bank the F o BERBBBEHRERERGT  BTRITEK
unconditional right to call in the loans at any time and therefore, for the purpose of HREFBERZEREEER  Fit - Bt ElBEER
the above maturity profile, the total amount is classified as “on demand”. mME ' BEIBERNRER] -
Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe that the loans will BEA LER  EFRAERBETERRELHR
be called in their entirety within 12 months from the end of the reporting period, BEF12@AREER2E8EE  BREREBETEB
and they consider that the loans will be repaid in accordance with the maturity RIBERBZAAAZNEABEE - ZTETIEEEN
dates as set out in the loan agreements. This evaluation was made considering: TEIERED : REBERMBREAEB NN B
the financial position of the Group at the date of approval of the financial RS WEEBHNFMH  RAEBERFIELAL
statements; the lack of events of default; and the fact that the Group has made all RITETE B K ©
previously scheduled repayments on time.
In accordance with the terms of the loans which contain repayment on demand BEBSREREREEFIOERER  ZFERR
clauses, the maturity profile of those loans as at the end of the reporting period, HEHRA T EER RIES ORITRAARE TG R
based on the contractual undiscounted payments and ignoring the effect of any R ZRERIEROTZE)OT -
repayment on demand clause, is as follows:
Within 1 year 1to 5 years Total
—FR —ZERE st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHT
As at 31 March 2023 H2023F3 A31H 7,510 18,152 20,662
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and T RlE RS B IR NICR (#)

Policies (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’
equity.

EXERE
AEBEAEENTEBRRRELRE
BRELLENENAEFRENEARL
T AXFHEEBRAGERANRRE
=0

ZIS% BERBELERRE(CRBAEER
REHEERABREERNERE - B
H%ﬂﬁé% B AEEgRAERR
RIS - MR R EARE R
WEEITHTAR (D - MELE2023F 3 31 H
K2022F3AB1BIEFE ERAEEMN
Fiiﬁﬁjwmﬁ]ﬁE A o

AEBEA BRI R A AKED
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36. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  36. ANA &) 27 B f& k&
Information about the statement of financial position of the RATRRE RN EANR R E RN

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: T
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZRE = -
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other receivable H b B BR 3R 193 1
Due from subsidiaries Y= NGIE /S 66,907 16,396
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 38,762 47,501
Total current assets MBEERE 105,862 63,898
CURRENT LIABILITIES G =R
Accruals Bt E A - 691
Due to subsidiaries FEAH B B A B FIA 41,935 -
Total current liabilities MBI BERRE 41,935 691
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 63,927 63,207
Net assets BEFE 63,927 63,207
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITRR A 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note (a)) s (M3E () 59,927 59,207
Total equity EmiaE 63,927 63,207
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36. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 36. ZNA &) 7 SR 3E (&)

(Continued)
Note: B E
(a) A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follow: (@) RATIREEOBENT
Share
premium Accumulated
account losses Total
R A7 5 E R Sy i #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FA&T
At 1 April 2021 H2021F4 818 67,788 (9,398) 58,390
Profit and total comprehensive FERM MRS
income for the year - 817 817
At 31 March 2022 and at 1 April 2022 R2022F 3 A31 B K&
2022 4 A1 H 67,788 (8,581) 59,207
Profit and total comprehensive FERMN 2K L
income for the year - 720 720
At 31 March 2023 R202343 831 67,788 (7,861) 50,027
. . N A ==
37. Approval of the Financial Statements 37. #LEM B
The financial statements were approved and authorised for IR RER2023F 6 A6 HIKES S
issue by the board of directors on 26 June 2023. OB R T o
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IFMBRE

For the year ended 31 March
BE3ASIHLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FTHET T FAET FHBT THBT

RESULTS E

Revenue & 463,117 363,915 128,871 176,529 154,695
Profit/(loss) before tax BEAEF S (EE) (23,867) 31,201 (16,217) 15,669 26,389
Income tax credit/(expense)  FriS iK%, (BisZ) 3,366 (5,819) 3,564 2,113 (4,591)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERERF(EE) (20,501) 25,382 (12,653) 13,556 21,798

As at 31 March
M3A31H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET T FAET T TET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREE
Total assets wAE 516,811 476,814 372,135 357,251 281,425
Total liabilities mefE (366,098) (305,544) (226,561) (199,020)  (139,699)

Equity attributable to owners A2 &1# A AJElL
of the Company %

W
B

150,713 171,270 145,574 158,231 141,726
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